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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers
of The Corporation of the City of St. Catharines

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Corporation of the
City of St. Catharines, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2012, and the consolidated statements of operations and accumulated surplus, cash
flows and change in net financial assets for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of The Corporation of the City of St. Catharines as at December 31, 2012, and
the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in net financial assets for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

A SN

0 '
St. Catharines, Ontario

CRAWFORD, SMITH AND SWALLOW
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP

LICENSED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
December 31, 2012
(In thousands of dollars)

2012 2011
$ $
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - note 2 62,815 62,700
Taxes receivable - note 3 14,039 13,544
Accounts receivable 23,210 20,048
Note receivable - St. Catharines Hydro Inc. - note 4 7,754 7,754
Investment in St. Catharines Hydro Inc. - note 4 70,047 67,423
177,865 171,469
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities - note 6 20,645 27,121
Deferred revenue - obligatory reserve funds - note 7 18,093 19,928
Other current liabilities 1,684 1,679
Employee future benefits - note 8 15,003 14,303
Landfill post-closure liability - note 16 3,020 3,422
Net long-term liabilities - note 9 72,663 64,794
131,108 131,247
Net Financial Assets 46,757 40,222
Non-Financial Assets
Tangible capital assets 599,178 581,743
Inventories 1,494 1,756
Other current assets 1,006 483
601,678 583,982
Accumulated Surplus - note 10 648,435 624,204

Signed on behalf of the Municipality:

Mayor

Chief Administrative Officer

See accompanying notes



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND ACCUMULATED

SURPLUS
for the year ended December 31, 2012
(In thousands of dollars)

Budget 2012 2011
$ $ $
Revenues
Taxation 84,007 82,937 79,140
Taxation from other governments 2,259 2,263 2,204
User fees and charges 36,777 37,687 34,851
Government grants 2,174 2,272 2,518
Interest and penalties 2,300 2,321 2,283
Investment income 2,117 2,413 2,658
Donations 155 394 105
Other 6,429 6,173 6,044
St. Catharines Hydro Inc. net
comprehensive income 2,530 5,878 3,958
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets (2,995) (360)
138,748 139,343 133,401
Expenses
General government 17,128 17,383 15,881
Protection to persons and property 25,650 24,732 24,293
Transportation services 31,549 43,231 42,422
Environmental services 12,422 14,637 15,133
Health services 3,870 3,836 3,896
Social and family services 298 363 375
Recreation and cultural services 25,443 27,783 25,040
Planning and development 6,568 6,173 5,755
122,928 138,138 132,795
Annual Surplus Before Other Revenue
Related to Capital 15,820 1,205 606
Other Revenue Related to Capital
Government grants 21,637 23,829
Contributions from developers 1,242 82
Donations 147 186
23,026 24,097
Annual Surplus 15,820 24,231 24,703
Accumulated Surplus, Beginning of Year 624,204 624,204 599,501
Accumulated Surplus, End of Year 640,024 648,435 624,204

See accompanying notes



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended December 31, 2012
(In thousands of dollars)

2012 2011
$ $
Operations
Annual surplus 24,231 24,703
Sources (Uses)
Change in taxes receivable (495) 357
Change in accounts receivable (3,162) (4,097)
Change in inventories 262 (162)
Change in other current assets (523) (221)
Change in accounts payable and accrued liabilities (6,476) (1,661)
Change in deferred revenue - obligatory reserve funds (1,835) 4,066
Change in other current liabilities 5 243
Change in employee future benefits 700 788
Change in landfill post-closure liability (402) (30)
(11,926) (717)
Non-cash charges to operations
Amortization of tangible capital assets 23,500 22,408
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets 2,995 360
26,495 22,768
Net increase in cash from operations 38,800 46,754
Capital
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (44,434) (70,693)
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets 504 131
Net decrease in cash from capital activities (43,930) (70,562)
Investing
Net comprehensive income - St. Catharines Hydro Inc. (5,878) (3,958)
Dividends received - St. Catharines Hydro Inc. 3,254 1,610
Net decrease in cash from investing (2,624) (2,348)
Financing
Long-term debt issued 15,803 13,292
Long-term debt repaid (7,934) (8,760)
Net increase in cash from financing 7,869 4,532
Increase (Decrease) in Cash Position 115 (21,624)
Cash Position, Beginning of Year 62,700 84,324
Cash Position, End of Year 62,815 62,700

See accompanying notes



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET FINANCIAL

ASSETS
for the year ended December 31, 2012
(In thousands of dollars)

2012 2011
$ $
Annual Surplus 24,231 24,703
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (44,434) (70,693)
Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 23,500 22,408
Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 2,995 360
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 504 131
Change in Inventories 262 (162)
Change in Other Current Assets (523) (221)
Increase (Decrease) in Net Financial Assets 6,535 (23,474)
Net Financial Assets, Beginning of Year 40,222 63,696
Net Financial Assets, End of Year 46,757 40,222

See accompanying notes



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

1.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements of the The Corporation of the City of St. Catharines
(the "Municipality") are the representations of management prepared in accordance with local
government accounting standards established by the Public Sector Accounting Board
("PSAB") of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants with the exception of
providing budget figures (note 17).

(a) Basis of consolidation

(1)

(ii)

(iif)

These consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses of the operating fund, reserves, reserve funds and changes in investment
in tangible capital assets. It includes the activities of all committees of council and
the following boards, municipal enterprises and utilities which are under the
control of council:

St. Catharines Public Library Board

St. Catharines Downtown Association

Port Dalhousie Business Improvement Area

St. Catharines Transit Commission - Urban Service

St. Catharines Transit Commission - Paratransit System
St. Catharines Hydro Inc.

St. Catharines Hydro Inc. (the "SCHI") is accounted for on a modified equity
basis, consistent with the accounting treatment for government business
enterprises. Under the modified equity basis, the business enterprise's accounting
principles are not adjusted to conform with those of the Municipality, and inter-
organizational transactions and balances are not eliminated. The Municipality
recognizes its equity interest in the net comprehensive income or loss of SCHI in
its "Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus" with a
corresponding increase or decrease in its investment asset account. Any dividends
that the Municipality receives from SCHI are reflected as reductions in the
investment asset account.

Partial-consolidated entities

The following joint local board is proportionately consolidated. See note 15.
Niagara District Airport Commission (Joint Board)

Accounting for Region and School Board transactions

The taxation, other revenues, expenditures, assets and liabilities with respect to the
operations of the school boards and the Region of Niagara are not reflected in the
municipal fund balances of these consolidated financial statements.



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

1. Significant Accounting Policies - continued

(a) Basis of consolidation - continued

(iv)

Trust funds

Trust funds and their related operations administered by the Municipality are not
consolidated, but are reported separately on the trust funds "Statement of Financial
Position and Statement of Financial Activities and Changes in Fund Balances".

(b) Basis of accounting

(1)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.

The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues as they become available and
measurable; expenditures are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a
result of receipt of goods or services and the creation of a legal obligation to pay.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of provincial government bonds and schedule 1 banks
bearer deposit notes. Cash equivalents are recorded at the lower of cost plus
accrued interest and market value, and are redeemable on demand.

Non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held
for use in the provisions of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the
current year, and are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.
The change in non-financial assets during the year, together with the annual
surplus, provides the change in net financial assets for the year.

Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost. Cost includes all directly attributable
expenditures in the acquisition, construction, development and/or betterment of the
asset required to install the asset at the location.

Amortization is recorded to reflect the cost, net of anticipated residual value,
associated with the use of the asset in providing government services on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset. Assets under construction are
not amortized until the asset is available for productive use, at which time they are
capitalized. Gains and/or losses on the disposal of an asset are be recorded on the
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus as "gain/loss on
disposal of tangible capital assets".



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

1.

Significant Accounting Policies - continued
(b) Basis of accounting - continued

(v) Tangible capital assets - continued

Tangible assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair market value at
the date of receipt and are also recorded as revenue. Similarly, transfer of assets to
third parties are recorded as an expense equal to the net book value of the asset as
at the date of transfer.

The historical cost of works of art or historical treasures has not been assigned to

these assets nor disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

Asset Class
Period Basis

General Assets

Land NIL

Land improvements 10-75 years straight line and declining

balance
Buildings and building
improvements 10-75 years straight line

Machinery and equipment 3-75 years straight line

Furniture and fixtures 5-100 years straight line

Information technology 3-12 years straight line

Vehicles 5-20 years straight line
Infrastructure

Land NIL

Land improvements 10-50 years straight line and declining

balance
Buildings and building
improvements 15-75 years straight line

Machinery and equipment 7-40 years straight line

Information technology 3-12 years straight line

Vehicles 7-10 years straight line

Linear 10-100 years straight line and declining

(vi) Inventories

Inventories are valued at average cost.

(vii) Deferred revenue

Funds received for specific purposes are accounted for as deferred revenue until

balance

the Municipality discharges the obligation which led to the receipt of the funds.



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

1. Significant Accounting Policies - continued
(b) Basis of accounting - continued
(vii)) Government transfers
Government transfers are recognized in the period in which the events giving rise
to the transfer occur, providing the transfers are authorized, any eligibility criteria
have been met, and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be made.
(ix) Use of estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Canadian public
sector accounting standards requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.
2. Cash and Cash Equivalents
(in thousands of dollars)
2012 2011
$ $
Cash 19,350 15,155
Cash equivalents 43,465 47,545
62,815 62,700

10



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

3.

Taxes Receivable and Revenues

Property tax billings are prepared by the Municipality based on an assessment roll prepared
by the Municipal Property Assessment Corporation ("MPAC"). The property tax
receivables, tax revenue and accounts payable and accrued liabilities of the Municipality are
subject to measurement uncertainty as a significant number of appeals submitted by
ratepayers have yet to be heard. In addition to the allowance for doubtful accounts of
$ 644,000, the Municipality has a contingent liability of $ 1,917,854 to fund prior year tax
appeals. The taxes receivable balance, including penalties and interest, is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

2012 2011
$ $
Current year 8,458 7,911
Arrears previous years 6,225 6,277
14,683 14,188
Less allowance (644) (644)
14,039 13,544

The Province of Ontario instituted a mandatory capping program through the provisions of
Bill 79, which limited assessment related increases to 10% in 1998, and an additional 5% in
each of 1999 and 2000. Multi-residential, commercial and industrial property owners
experiencing decreases were also capped at appropriate levels to fund the phasing-in of
increases. The Province has enacted Bill 140, which serves to extend the capping provisions
of Bill 79 indefinitely. The new legislation limits assessment related increases in property tax
bills to 5%.

11



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

4. Investment in St. Catharines Hydro Inc.
(in thousands of dollars)

2012 2011
$ $

(as restated)
Statement of Financial Position

Current assets 11,040 11,101
Investments 50,186 47,195
Property, plant and equipment 8,373 8,499
Intangible assets 9,461 10,017
Other assets 92 92
Total Assets 79,152 76,904
Current liabilities 494 791
Other liabilities 22
Long-term note payable 7,754 7,754
Deferred payments in lieu of corporate income taxes 857 914
Total Liabilities 9,105 9,481
Net Assets 70,047 67,423
(in thousands of dollars)
2012 2011
$ $

(as restated)
Statement of Comprehensive Income

Revenues 8,765 7,166
Expenses 2,887 3,208
Net Comprehensive Income 5,878 3,958

St. Catharines Hydro Inc. ("SCHI") adopted International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRS") on January 1, 2012 with a transition date of January 1, 2011. These standards were
applied retrosepctively to the comparative information including the consolidated statements
of financial position as at January 1, 2011 and December 31, 2011, and the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2011.

In preparing its opening IFRS consolidated statement of financial position, SCHI has adjusted
amounts previously reported in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles. The major areas of restatement involved the company's investment in Horizon
Holdings Inc., property, plant and equipment and deferred payments in lieu of corporate
income taxes. For a more detailed explanation of the above changes please refer to the
audited consolidated financial statements of SCHI.

12



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

4. Investment in St. Catharines Hydro Inc. - continued

Total assets of SCHI, as previously reported, increased from $ 66,331,000 to $ 76,904,000,
total liabilities increased from $ 8,933,000 to $ 9,481,000 and net assets increased from
$ 57,398,000 to $ 67,423,000. In addition, revenues as previously reported, decreased from
$ 7,452,000 to $ 7,166,000, expenses increased from $ 2,648,000 to $ 3,208,000 and net
comprehensive income decreased from $ 4,804,000 to $ 3,958,000.

5. Credit Facility

The Municipality has an authorized operating loan of $ 20,000,000 of which NIL has been
drawn upon as at December 31, 2012.

6. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

The accounts payable balance is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

2012 2011
$ $
Trade accounts payable 7,750 10,994
Payables to other governments 4,590 8,975
Payables to school boards 54 219
Other 8,251 6,933
20,645 27,121

7. Deferred Revenue - Obligatory Reserve Funds

The following balances are reflected as deferred revenue - obligatory reserve funds as
provincial legislation restricts how these funds may be used and under certain circumstances
these funds may be refunded.

(in thousands of dollars)

2012 2011
$ $
Impost and development 3,360 3,318
Subdivider deposits 287 309
Revenue under the Planning Act 1,353 1,239
Future sidewalks 980 931
Gasoline tax - provincial 4,099 2,844
Gasoline tax - federal 8,014 11,287
18,093 19,928

13



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

8.

Employee Future Benefits

The Municipality provides certain employee benefits which will require funding in future
periods. Under the sick-leave benefit plan, unused sick leave can accumulate and employees
may become entitled to a cash payment when they leave the Municipality's employment.

The Municipality pays certain medical, dental and life insurance benefits on behalf of its
retired employees. The Municipality recognizes these post-retirement costs in the period in
which the employees renders the services. The accrued benefit obligation was determined by
actuarial valuation using a discount rate of 4.75% (4.75% - 2011).

The Municipality has established a reserve for the accumulated sick leave liability. The
balance as at December 31, 2012 is $ 3,067,322 ($ 3,081,803 - 2011).

Defined Benefit Plan Information
(in thousands of dollars)

2012 2011
$ $

Employee benefit plan assets

Employee benefit plan liabilities 15,003 14,303
Employee benefit plan deficit 15,003 14,303
Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year 14,303 13,515
Expense for the year 1,416 1,343
Amortization of actuarial losses 184 184
Benefits paid during the year (900) (739)
Accrued benefit obligation, end of year 15,003 14,303

As a result of an actuarial valuation conducted in 2011 for the year ending December 31,
2010, it was determined that an actuarial loss of $ 1,825,611 existed. This amount is being
amortized over the expected average remaining service lives of several employee groups.
The unamortized value remaining is $ 1,273,129. The actual obligation is $ 16,275,844,

The next actuarial valuation required is for December 31, 2013.
The main actuarial assumptions employed for the valuation are as follows:

General Inflation - Future general inflation levels, as measured by changes in the Consumer
Price Index ("CPI"), were assumed at 2.0% in 2012 and thereafter.

Salary Levels - Future salary and wage levels were assumed to increase at 2.0% per annum
for the year 2012 through 2015 and 3.3% thereafter.

Medical Costs - Medical costs were assumed to increase at a rate of 7.25% graded down to
6.88% in 2013, 6.50% in 2014, 6.13% in 2015, 5.75% in 2016, 5.38% in 2017, and 5.00% in
2018 and each year thereafter.

Dental Costs - Dental costs were assumed to increase at a rate of 5.0% per annum.

14



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

9.

Net Long-Term Liabilities

(a) The balance of net long-term liabilities reported on the "Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position" is made up as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

2012 2011
$ $
The Municipality has assumed responsibility for
the payment of principal and interest charges on
certain long-term liabilities issued by other
municipalities. At the end of the year the
outstanding principal amount of this liability is 72,663 64,794
Net long-term liabilities, end of year 72,663 64,794
(b) Of the net long-term liabilities reported in (a) of this note, principal payments are due as
follows:
$

2013 8,668,655

2014 7,774,160

2015 7,204,263

2016 6,855,762

2017 6,271,926

Thereafter 35,888,293

(¢) Included in the net long-term liabilities reported in (a), $ 8,959,120 relates to a sinking
fund debenture. The principal portion of the sinking fund is $ 9,333,334, the balance of
sinking funds set aside in 2012 is § 180,799 including 2012 interest earned of $ 10,357.

(d) The long-term liabilities in (a) issued in the name of the Municipality have received
approval of the Ontario Municipal Board for those approved on or before December 31,
1992. Those approved after January 1, 1993 have been approved by by-law. The annual
principal and interest payments required to service these liabilities are within the annual
debt repayment limit prescribed by the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing.

(e) Interest expense on long-term debt amounted to $ 2,999,236 ($ 2,812,043 - 2011).

15



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended December 31, 2012

10. Accumulated Surplus

(in thousands of dollars)

2012 2011
$ $
Invested in tangible capital assets 578,264 554,532
Operating fund 7,277 5,092
Reserves and reserve funds 75,641 71,784
Equity in St. Catharines Hydro Inc. 77,801 75,177
738,983 706,585
Amounts to be recovered
Employee future benefits (15,003) (14,303)
Landfill post-closure liability (3,020) (3,422)
Net long-term liabilities (72,525) (64,656)
(90,548) (82,381)
648,435 624,204

(a) Operating fund balance

(in thousands of dollars)

2012 2011
$ $
To be applied in the following year to operations
of the:
Operating fund 4,304 4,014
Transit 25 25
Library 95 132
Airport Commission 117 125
To be applied to water operations for the
following year 2,736 796
7,277 5,092

16



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended December 31, 2012

10. Accumulated Surplus - continued

(b) Reserves and reserve fund balances

(in thousands of dollars)

2012 2011
$ $
Reserves set aside by council for specific purposes:

Working capital 28 28
Replacement of equipment 8,844 9,638
Cumulative sick leave 3,067 3,082
Library purposes 2,526 2,729
Transit purposes 277 312
Encumbrances 18,421 14,936
Cemetery 30 47
Move Ontario 3 3
Brownfield 333 359
Roads and sewers 55 55
Hydro funds 1,000

34,584 31,189

Reserve Funds set aside by council for specific
purposes:

Actifest 8 8
Aquatic facility 69
Business improvement purposes 106 151
Community development 38,278 37,883
Mausoleum 1,020 980
Paratransit capital purposes 251 35
Parking 1,394 1,469

41,057 40,595

75,641 71,784

17



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

10. Accumulated Surplus - continued

(c) St. Catharines Hydro Inc. net equity (as restated)
(in thousands of dollars)

2012 2011
$ $
Balance, beginning of year 75,177 72,829
Changes during the year
Net comprehensive income 5,878 3,958
Dividends paid during the year (3,254) (1,610)
2,624 2,348
Balance, end of year 77,801 75,177

As disclosed in note 4, the comparative revenues, expenses and net comprehensive
figures were restated due to the adoption of International Financial Reporting Stanadrds
("IFRS"). In addition, the balance, beginning of year, as previously reported, increased
from $ 61,958,000 to $ 72,829,000.

11. Trust Funds

Trust funds administered by the Municipality amounting to $ 9,084,000 ($ 8,880,000 - 2011)
have not been included in the "Consolidated Statement of Financial Position" nor have their
operations been included in the "Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities".

12. Pension Agreements

The Municipality makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement
System ("OMERS"), which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of 927 members of its staff.
The plan is a defined benefit plan which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be
received by the employees based on the length of service and rates of pay.

The amount contributed to OMERS for 2012 was $ 4,949,603 ($ 4,375,590 - 2011) for
current service and is included as an expense in the "Consolidated Statement of Operations
and Accumulated Surplus".

18



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

13. Contractual Obligations and Commitments
Capital expenditures

The estimated future capital expenditures based on projects in progress at December 31,
2012 is approximately $ 114,075,000 ($ 86,159,000 - 2011) after deducting the
expenditures incurred as at December 31, 2012. These projects will be financed by grants,
subsidies and long-term liabilities in future years.

Niagara Health System St. Catharines Hospital

The Municipality is committed to funding $ 31,200,000 (net present value) of the local
share amounting to $ 60,000,000 to construct a new Niagara Health System ("NHS")
hospital complex to be located in St. Catharines. The Municipality approved a plan which
results in an additional annual tax levy in the amount of $ 2,209,605 for next year and for 13
years thereafter. The schedule of payments to the NHS consists of a lump sum payment of
$ 8,271,760 that was paid in 2011, and annual installments of $ 2,208,959 from 2012 to
2026.

14. Contingent Liabilities

From time to time, the Municipality is subject to claims and other lawsuits that arise in the
ordinary course of operations, some of which may seek damages in substantial amounts,
including punitive or extraordinary damages. These claims may be covered by the
Municipality's insurance up to a maximum of $ 20,000,000 per occurrence. Liability for these
claims and lawsuits are recorded to the extent that the probability of a loss is likely and it is
estimable.

15. Contributions to Joint Board

Further to note 1 (a)(ii) the following contributions were made by the Municipality to:
(in thousands of dollars)

2012 2011
$ $

Niagara District Airport Commission 145 145

The Municipality's share of the net assets of the Niagara District Airport Commission is
approximately 55%.

19



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

16. Landfill Post Closure Liability

The Municipality currently monitors several landfill sites which were closed in prior years.
The liability for post-closure care has been recognized based on monitoring costs included in
the 2012 budget and inflation adjusted at 1.1% per annum. These costs were then discounted
to December 31, 2012 using a discount rate of 4.75%.

The liability for post-closure care as at December 31, 2012 is $ 3,020,397 ($ 3,421,661 -
2011). Estimated annual expenditures for post-closure care are $ 166,500 ($ 166,500 -
2011) and are expected to be incurred for the next 30 years.

17. Budget Figures

The approved operating budget for 2012 is reflected on the "Consolidated Statement of
Operations and Accumulated Surplus". These numbers have not been audited but are
presented for information purposes only. The budgets established for capital funds, reserves
and reserve funds are on a project-oriented basis, the costs of which may be carried out over
one or more years. As such, they are not directly comparable with current year actual
amounts and have not been reflected. Budget figures have been reclassified to comply with
PSAB reporting requirements.

18. Comparative Figures

Certain figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation. This
includes certain tangible capital assets that have been reclassified to different asset classes.

19. Segmented Reporting

The City of St. Catharines is a lower tier municipality that provides a wide range of services
to its citizens. Segments include General Government, Protection, Transportation,
Environmental and Recreation and Culture. Major services and activities provided by each
segment are as follows:

General Government

Reported in the General Government functional area are the combined functions of general
government, health services, social and family services and planning and development.

General government includes services relating to governance, corporate management and
program support. These are the combined services of the CAO's office, Financial
Management, Legal and Corporate Support Services departments.

Health Services includes the administration, operation and maintenance of City cemeteries.
Also included here is the City's commitment to the new Niagara Health System hospital.

Social and family services includes the administration, operation and maintenance of
seniors programs and facilities. Also included here are Para Transit Services provided by
the St. Catharines Transit Commission.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

19. Segmented Reporting - continued
General Government - continued

Planning and development services includes services relating to the Official Plan, zoning,
community improvement, the attraction and retention of new and existing businesses and
tourism. Also included here are the services provided by the Downtown Association and
Port Dalhousie Business Improvement Area.

Protection to Persons and Property

Reported in the Protection to Persons and Property functional area are services relating to
fire suppression, prevention, training and communication, the issuance of permits, building
inspections and property standards, enforcement of applicable municipal bylaws and
technical analysis and recommendations for proposed and existing developments.

Transportation Services

Reported in the Transportation Services functional area are services relating to the
construction, rehabilitation and maintenance of City's road and sidewalk network, winter
control, parking and parking enforcement and street lighting. Also included are Urban
Transit Services provided by the St. Catharines Transit Commission and the City's portion
of the Niagara District Airport.

Environmental Services

Reported in the Environmental Services functional area are services relating to the
construction, rehabilitation and maintenance of the City's storm sewer, sanitary sewer and
waterline network, pollution control, environmental monitoring and the implementation of
environmental programs.

Recreation/Culture Services

Reported in the Recreation/Cultural Services functional area are services relating to the
administration, operations and maintenance of the City's parks, recreation facilities and
programs, museum, heritage facilities and cultural programs. Also included are library
services provided by the St. Catharines Public Library Board.

21



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES

SCHEDULE OF SEGMENTED REPORTING

December 31, 2012
(In thousands of dollars)

General General Recreation/ Recreation/
Government ~ Government Protection Protection  Transportation Transportation Environmental Environmental Culture Culture SCHI SCHI Total Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Revenues
Taxation 18,826 15,670 18,744 15,274 23,057 21,922 3,732 11,475 18,578 14,799 82,937 79,140
Taxation from other governments 514 436 511 425 629 611 102 320 507 412 2,263 2,204
User fees and charges 2,169 2,402 1,302 1,246 12,361 11,589 19,889 17,846 1,966 1,768 37,687 34,851
Government grants 295 378 31 34 1,580 1,755 366 351 2,272 2,518
Interest and penalties 527 452 525 441 645 632 104 331 520 427 2,321 2,283
Investment income 1,220 1,267 339 326 418 471 67 245 369 349 2,413 2,658
Donations 38 29 18 13 338 63 394 105
Other 839 846 1,598 1,287 905 995 28 28 2,803 2,888 6,173 6,044
St. Catharines Hydro Inc. net
comprehensive income 5,878 3,958 5,878 3,958
Gain (loss) on disposal of tangible
capital assets 58 (24) 7 36 (1,437) (193) (300) (109) (1,323) (70) (2,995) (360)
24,486 21,456 23,057 19,069 36,596 36,040 25,202 31,891 24,124 20,987 5,878 3,958 139,343 133,401
Expenditures
Salaries and wages 17,604 16,338 21,868 21,280 17,029 16,859 5,414 5,095 14,619 12,950 76,534 72,522
Operating materials and supplies 4,770 4,495 1,272 1,252 7,375 8,572 841 1,241 4,817 5,500 19,075 21,060
Contracted services 2,678 2,365 605 732 3,071 3,641 984 1,499 1,523 1,907 8,861 10,144
Rents and financial expenses 259 187 10 2 2,081 377 377 315 1,576 314 4,303 1,195
Interfunctional transfer (1,814) (1,481) 261 251 (226) (574) 1,859 1,892 (80) (88)
External transfer 2,614 2,435 10 10 5 5 236 204 2,865 2,654
Amortization 1,426 1,308 691 730 12,938 12,543 4,494 4,337 3,951 3,490 23,500 22,408
Debt service 216 260 25 46 953 994 664 749 1,142 763 3,000 2,812
27,753 25,907 24,732 24,293 43,231 42,422 14,638 15,133 27,784 25,040 138,138 132,795
Annual Surplus (Deficit) Before Other
Revenue Related to Capital (3,267) (4,451) (1,675) (5,224) (6,635) (6,382) 10,564 16,758 (3,660) (4,053) 5,878 3,958 1,205 606
Other Revenue Related to Capital
Government grants 13,020 15,699 2,545 2,348 6,072 5,782 21,637 23,829
Contributions from developers 445 53 797 29 1,242 82
Donations 147 186 147 186
13,465 15,752 3,342 2,377 6,219 5,968 23,026 24,097
Annual Surplus (Deficit) (3,267) (4,451) (1,675) (5,224) 6,830 9,370 13,906 19,135 2,559 1,915 5,878 3,958 24,231 24,703

See accompanying notes
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES

SCHEDULES OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
for the year ended December 31, 2012
(In thousands of dollars)

Cost Accumulated Amortization
Balance, Balance, Balance, Balance, Net
Beginning of End of Beginning of End of Book
Year Additions Disposals Year Year Amortization Disposals Year Value
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
General
Land 39,541 271 2,178 37,634 37,634
Land improvements 53,983 4,243 338 57,888 20,071 1,725 260 21,536 36,352
Buildings, improvements
and components 82,004 48,566 951 129,619 30,501 2,341 272 32,570 97,049
Machinery and equipment 21,116 2,174 1,812 21,478 10,389 1,530 1,778 10,141 11,337
Furniture and fixtures 2,603 701 49 3,255 1,168 102 64 1,206 2,049
Information technology 5,106 1,012 358 5,760 2,886 676 356 3,206 2,554
Vehicles 41,562 520 874 41,208 18,824 3,197 681 21,340 19,868
245915 57,487 6,560 296,842 83,839 9,571 3,411 89,999 206,843
Infrastructure
Land 2,240 2,240 2,240
Land improvements 8,056 55 8,111 2,723 198 2,921 5,190
Buildings, improvements
and components 26,128 5,083 31,211 4,947 768 5,715 25,496
Machinery and equipment 14,054 532 832 13,754 7,395 769 787 7,377 6,377
Information technology 94 1 95 24 19 43 52
Vehicles 8,642 284 383 8,543 5,252 566 383 5,435 3,108
Linear 561,990 10,622 1,690 570,922 250,016 11,609 1,385 260,240 310,682
621,204 16,577 2,905 634,876 270,357 13,929 2,555 281,731 353,145
Work in Progress 68,820 (29,630) 39,190 39,190
December 31, 2012 935,939 44,434 9,465 970,908 354,196 23,500 5,966 371,730 599,178

See accompanying notes
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES

SCHEDULES OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
for the year ended December 31, 2012
(In thousands of dollars)

Cost Accumulated Amortization
Balance, Balance, Balance, Balance, Net
Beginning of End of Beginning of End of Book
Year Additions Disposals Year Year Amortization Disposals Year Value
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
General
Land 39,544 3 39,541 39,541
Land improvements 43,309 11,033 359 53,983 18,885 1,465 279 20,071 33,912
Buildings, improvements
and components 78,676 3,613 285 82,004 29,157 1,577 233 30,501 51,503
Machinery and equipment 19,857 2,051 792 21,116 9,700 1,479 790 10,389 10,727
Furniture and fixtures 2,569 34 2,603 1,085 83 1,168 1,435
Information technology 4,224 1,079 197 5,106 2,400 678 192 2,886 2,220
Vehicles 40,549 2,189 1,176 41,562 16,818 3,182 1,176 18,824 22,738
228,728 19,999 2,812 245915 78,045 8,464 2,670 83,839 162,076
Infrastructure
Land 2,240 2,240 2,240
Land improvements 7,318 738 8,056 2,550 173 2,723 5,333
Buildings, improvements
and components 25,756 379 7 26,128 4,264 690 7 4,947 21,181
Machinery and equipment 14,144 394 484 14,054 7,058 788 451 7,395 6,659
Information technology 61 33 94 8 16 24 70
Vehicles 8,373 504 235 8,642 4910 577 235 5,252 3,390
Linear 546,906 17,162 2,078 561,990 240,078 11,700 1,762 250,016 311,974
604,798 19,210 2,804 621,204 258,868 13,944 2,455 270,357 350,847
Work in Progress 37,336 31,484 68,820 68,820
December 31, 2011 870,862 70,693 5,616 935,939 336,913 22,408 5,125 354,196 581,743

See accompanying notes
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT - TRUST FUNDS

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers
of The Corporation of the City of St. Catharines

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the trust funds of The Corporation of
the City of St. Catharines, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31,
2012 and the statement of financial activities and changes in fund balances for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position

of the trust funds of The Corporation of the City of St. Catharines as at December 31, 2012 and the
continuity of trust funds for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector

accounting standards.
A / /) /)

0 '
St. Catharines, Ontario

CRAWFORD, SMITH AND SWALLOW
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP

LICENSED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - TRUST FUNDS
December 31, 2012
(In thousands of dollars)

Cemetery Perpetual Marker Care & Memorial
Total Care Fund Maintenance Fund Forest
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Assets
Cash 204 179 96 95 69 69
Investments (market value
2012 - $8,595; 2011 -
$8,737) 8,595 8,737 7,324 7,477 484 484
Prepaid interest 7 3 7 3
Other current assets 1
Due from operating fund 295 11 284 11
9,101 8,931 7,711 7,575 553 553 11
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Due to operating fund 17 51 18 17 33
Fund balances 9,084 8,880 7,711 7,557 536 520 11
9,101 8,931 7,711 7,575 553 553 11

See accompanying notes



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - TRUST FUNDS

December 31, 2012
(In thousands of dollars)
Library Endowment Museum
& Trust Fund Lottery & Bingo
2012 2011 2012 2011
$ $ $ $
Assets
Cash 38 14 1
Investments (market value
2012 - $8,595; 2011 -
$8,737) 787 776
Prepaid interest
Other current assets
Due from operating fund
825 790 1
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Due to operating fund
Fund balances 825 790 1
825 790 1

See accompanying notes
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - TRUST FUNDS

for the year ended December 31, 2012
(In thousands of dollars)

Cemetery Perpetual Marker Care & Memorial
Total Care Fund Maintenance Fund Forest
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Balance, Beginning of Year 8,880 8,665 7,557 7,374 520 501 11 9
Receipts

Sale of plots, crypts and

markers 170 202 154 183 16 19

Ticket sales

Book revenue 12 13

Interest 369 385 331 356 22 23

Loss on sale of investments (29) (1) (29) 1)

Donations 20 13 8 7

542 612 456 538 38 42 8 7

Expenditures

Contribution to operating fund 332 383 302 355 22 23 8 5

Administration 5 5

Special projects 1 9

338 397 302 355 22 23 8 5

Balance, End of Year 9,084 8,880 7,711 7,557 536 520 11 11

See accompanying notes
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - TRUST FUNDS
for the year ended December 31, 2012
(In thousands of dollars)

Library Endowment Museum
& Trust Fund Lottery & Bingo
2012 2011 2012 2011
$ $ $ $
Balance, Beginning of Year 790 770 2 11
Receipts
Sale of plots, crypts and
markers
Ticket sales
Book revenue 12 13
Interest 16 6
Loss on sale of investments
Donations 12 6
40 25
Expenditures
Contribution to operating fund
Administration 5 5
Special projects 1 9
5 5 1 9
Balance, End of Year 825 790 1 2

See accompanying notes



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ST. CATHARINES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - TRUST FUNDS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

1.

Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Municipality's trust funds are the representations of
management prepared in accordance Canadian public sector accounting standards.

(a) Basis of accounting
(i) Revenues and expenditures are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.

(i) The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues as they become available and
measurable; expenditures are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a
result of the receipt of goods or services and the creation of a legal obligation to

pay.

(ii1) Investments are recorded at cost.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board Members of the Port Dalhousie Business
Association, Members of Council, Inhabitants and
Ratepayers of The Corporation of the City of St. Catharines

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Port Dalhousie Business
Association, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2012, and the
statements of operations and accumulated surplus, cash flows and change in net financial assets for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Port Dalhousie Business Association as at December 31, 2012, and the results of its
operations, cash flows and change in net financial assets for the year then ended in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards.

)
St. Catharines, Ontario

Aarch 22,2013 CRAWFORD, SMITH AND SWALLOW
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP

LICENSED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



PORT DALHOUSIE BUSINESS ASSOCIATION

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
December 31, 2012

2012 2011
$ $
Financial Assets
Cash 17,988 36,075
HST receivable 4,062 7,936
22,050 44,011
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,090 2,174
Deferred revenue 833 833
2,923 3,007
Net Financial Assets 19,127 41,004
Non-Financial Assets
Tangible capital assets - note 2 7,961 11,764
Prepaid expenses 2,034 1,556
9,995 13,320
Accumulated Surplus - note 3 29,122 54,324

Sign behalf of the Board:

/ e __ Director
/ Z%?/\L 2 Cj/ \ e Director
NI/ 2

| W//

See accompanying notes
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PORT DALHOUSIE BUSINESS ASSOCIATION

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

for the year ended December 31,2012

(Unaudited)
Budget Actual Actual
2012 2012 2011
$ $ $
Revenues
Requisition from the City of St. Catharines
Original 15,000 15,000 30,000
Supplemental taxes 150
Taxes written-off (3,413) (1,887)
Net requisition 15,000 11,737 28,113
Events 11,000 12,542
Interest 89 154
Membership dues 450 100
Miscellaneous 5 174
Sign reimbursement from the City of St. Catharines 2,500 2,500
26,450 14,431 43,483
Expenses
Administration 15,000 15,836 9,902
Amortization 3.803 3,803
Bank charges 200 91 55
Dalhousie dollars 600 200 314
Events 1,000 8,905
Internet and website 1,360 2,490 2,246
Professional fees 500 967 2,112
Promotions and marketing 3,709 6,718 6,109
Rent and utilities 9,861 9.023 10,194
Special events 400 1,107
Streetscaping 2,000 1,497
Supplies 550 505 591
35,180 39,633 46,835
Annual Deficit (8,730) (25,202) (3,352)
Accumulated Surplus, Beginning of Year 54,324 54,324 57,676
Accumulated Surplus, End of Year 45,594 29,122 54,324

See accompanying notes
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PORT DALHOUSIE BUSINESS ASSOCIATION

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

2012 2011
$ $
Operations =
Annual deficit (25,202) (3,352)
Uses ' .
Increase in accounts receivable (3,744)
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities (84)
Decrease in due to the City of St. Catharines (169)
Increase in prepaid expenses (478)
(562) (3,913)
Sources
Decrease in HST receivable 3.874
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 699
Decrease in prepaid expenses 4,665
- 3874 5,364
Non-cash charges to operations o
Amortization of tangible capital assets 3,803 3,803
Increase (Decrease) in Cash Position (18,087) 1,902
Cash Position, Beginning of Year 36,075 34,173
Cash Position, End of Year 17,988 36,075

See accompanying notes
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PORT DALHOUSIE BUSINESS ASSOCIATION

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS

for the year ended December 31, 2012

2012 2011
$ $
Annual Deficit (25,202) (3,352)
Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 3,803 3,803
Change in Prepaid Expenses (478) 4,665
Increase (Decrease) in Net Financial Assets (21,877 5,116
Net Financial Assets, Beginning of Year 41,004 35,888
Net Financial Assets, End of Year 19,127 41,004

See accompanying notes
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PORT DALHOUSIE BUSINESS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

Organization

The Port Dalhousie Business Association (the "Association"), established in 1986 pursuant to
the Ontario Municipal Act, operates to revitalize and promote the Port Dalhousie business area.

1. Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Association are the representations of management prepared
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards as recommended by the
Public Sector Accounting Board ("PSAB") of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants. Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopted by the Association are
as follows:

Accrual accounting
Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual basis
of accounting recognizes revenues as they become available and measurable; expenses are
recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of goods or services
and the creation of a legal obligation to pay.

Non-financial assets
Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use
in the provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year,
and are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.

Tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets are rtecorded at historical cost. Cost includes all directly
attributable expenditures in the acquisition, construction, development and/or betterment
of the asset required to install the asset at the location.

Amortization is recorded to reflect the cost, net of anticipated residual value, associated
with the use of the asset in providing services on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of the asset. Additions during the year are amortized from the month of
acquisition. Disposals are amortized until the month of disposition. Gains and/or losses
on the disposal of an asset are recorded on the statement of operations and accumulated
surplus as "gain/loss on disposal of assets".

Asset Class Period

Banners - 5Syears
Computers - 5years
Lights - Syears
Office equipment - 10 years

crawford smith (R swallow



PORT DALHOUSIE BUSINESS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

1. Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Use of estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector
accounting standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

2. Tangible Capital Assets

| 2012 2011
~ Accumulated  Net Book Net Book

~ Cost  Amortization  Value Value
Banners 6869 4809 2060 3,434
Computers “ 848 . 595 . 953 423
Lights . 9280 . 4640 6,496
Office equipment .. 40 3,923 . 1oog 1,411
. onms . 1361 . 191 11,764

There were no additions of tangible capital assets in 2012 or 2011.

There were no dispositions of tangible capital assets in 2012 or 201 1.

3. Accumulated Surplus

2012 2011
$ $
Invested in tangible capital assets 7,961 11,764
Operating fund
Reserve funds
Streetscaping 2,257
Contemporary and Heritage 21,161 40,303
21,161 42,560
29,122 54,324

crawford smith (R swallow



PORT DALHOUSIE BUSINESS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

4. Reserve Funds

Streetscaping Reserve Fund
The streetscaping reserve fund is used to fund expenditures that contribute towards the
development and beautification of Port Dalhousie that are approved by the Association. It
is the policy of the Association that the operating fund net revenue or deficit for the year be
transferred to or from the fund.

Contemporary and Heritage Reserve Fund
The contemporary and heritage reserve fund is used to accumulate donation and
fundraising revenues for the funding of special projects as determined by the Association.

5. Related Party Transactions

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities includes $504 (2011 - $nil) due to the City of St.
Catharines.

crawiford smith (& swallow
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board Members of the St. Catharines Downtown
Association, Members of Council, Inhabitants and
Ratepayers of The Corporation of the City of St. Catharines

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the St. Catharines Downtown
Association, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2012, and the
statements of operations and accumulated surplus, cash flows and change in net financial assets for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material

misstaternent.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
Statements.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the St. Catharines Downtown Association as at December 31, 2012, and the results of its
operations, cash flows and change in net financial assets for the year then ended in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards.

s
St. Catharines, Ontario

February 12, 2013 CRAWFORD, SMITH AND SWALLOW
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP

LICENSED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



ST. CATHARINES DOWNTOWN ASSOCIATION

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
December 31, 2012

2011
$
Financial Assets - note 5
Cash 60,100
Accounts receivable - note 8 63,971
124,071
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities - note 8 18,192
Provision for redemption of parking tokens - note 2 6,396
24,588
Net Financial Assets 99,483
Non-Financial Assets
Prepaid expenses 8,679
Tangible capital assets - notes 3 and 5 62,148
70,827
Accumulated Surplus - note 4 170,310

Signed on behalf of the Board
JM[‘L(UW%M Director
__+ Director

See accompanying notes
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ST. CATHARINES DOWNTOWN ASSOCIATION

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

(Unaudited)
Budget Actual
2012 2011
$ $
Revenues
Requisition from the City of St. Catharines
Member levies 384,431 384,431
Supplemental taxes 4,106
Taxes written-off (8,090) (21,062)
Net requisition 376,341 367,475
Other recoveries from the City of St. Catharines
Recovery of Christmas expenses 10,621
Total revenues from City of St. Catharines 376,341 378,096
Other revenues .
Events - schedule 1 . 41833 14,987
376,341 ‘ ’ 393,083
Expenses - schedule 2
Administration 171,450 152,809
Amortization 26,833
Development 49,900 29,366
Events 44,000 53,609
Media and visual marketing 105,000 100,929
Tourism 10,000 . 9 7,525
380350 436,131 371,071
Annual Surplus (Deficit) (4,009) - (35,3803 22,012
Accumulated Surplus, Beginning of Year 170,310 ; 170310 ~ 148,298
Accumulated Surplus, End of Year 166,301 , 144,93(} 170,310

See accompanying notes
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ST. CATHARINES DOWNTOWN ASSOCIATION

STATEMENT OF CASH FLLOWS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

2011
$
Operations

Annual surplus (deficit) 22,012
Uses ..

Increase in accounts receivable . (66 (1,558)
Increase in prepaid expenses . e

Decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities o (326)
Decrease in provision for redemption of parking tokens - ; (30) ‘

. B (1,884)

Sources - ‘

Decrease in prepaid expenses . 308

Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities . 9087

Increase in provision for redemption of parking tokens . 538
998y 846

Non-cash charges to operations :

Amortization of tangible capital assets . ‘22,:,605 26,833

Net change in cash from operations - (1,367) 47,807
Capital .

Acquisition of tangible capital assets ‘ (20,524) (6,333)
Increase (Decrease) in Cash Position (;21,891) : 41,474
Cash Position, Beginning of Year 60,100 18,626
Cash Position, End of Year 38209 60,100

See accompanying notes

crawford smith (& swallow



ST. CATHARINES DOWNTOWN ASSOCIATION

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

2012 2011
$ $
Annual Surplus (Deficit) (25,380) 22,012
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (20,524) (6,333)
Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 22,605 26,833
Change in Prepaid Expenses (2,875) 308
Increase (Decrease) in Net Financial Assets (26,174) 42,820
Net Financial Assets, Beginning of Year 99,483 56,663
Net Financial Assets, End of Year 73,309 99,483

See accompanying notes
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ST. CATHARINES DOWNTOWN ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

Organization

The St. Catharines Downtown Association (the "Association”), established in 1973 pursuant
to the Ontario Municipal Act, operates to develop and revitalize the downtown core of St.
Catharines. The Association participates in programs aimed at the physical improvement and
beautification of the area, as well as the promotion of businesses located in the downtown
core.

1. Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Association are the representations of management prepared
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards for local governments as
recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board ("PSAB") of the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants. ~ Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopted by the
Association are as follows:

Accrual accounting
Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual basis
of accounting recognizes revenues as they become available and measurable; expenses are
recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of goods or services
and the creation of a legal obligation to pay.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from member levies is recognized as income when they become available and
measurable.

Non-financial assets
Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use
in the provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year,
and are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.

Tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets are recorded at historical cost. Cost includes all directly
attributable expenditures in the acquisition, construction, development and/or betterment
of the asset required to install the asset at the location.

Amortization is recorded to reflect the cost, net of anticipated residual value, associated
with the use of the asset in providing services on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of the asset. Additions during the year are amortized from the month of
acquisition. Disposals are amortized until the month of disposition. Gains and/or losses
on the disposal of an asset are recorded on the statement of operations and accumulated
surplus as "gain/loss on disposal of assets".
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ST. CATHARINES DOWNTOWN ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

1. Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Tangible capital assets - continued

Asset Class Rate

Computers - 3years
Garbage receptacles - 10 years
Holiday decor - Syears
Kiosks - 20 years
Planters - 10 years

Use of estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector
accounting standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

2. Parking Tokens

The provision for redemption of parking tokens of $ 6,366 (2011 - $ 6,396) represents the
estimated value of parking tokens in the hands of merchants and their customers.

3. Tangible Capital Assets

 Accumulated | .
~ Cost  Amortization 2012 2011
Computers 1961 w0 1?254 954
Garbage receptacles 21943 10988 10955 3,206
Holiday decor _ Bpaes 45600 36,778 42,011
Kiosks . 3 10,652
177,636 117569 60,067 62,148
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ST. CATHARINES DOWNTOWN ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

4. Accumulated Surplus

2012 2011
$ $
Invested in tangible capital assets 60,067 62,148
Operating fund
Reserve fund 84,863 108,162
144,930 170,310

5. Bank Indebtedness

Bank indebtedness, as it may occur, is secured by a registered general security agreement.
The maximum line of credit available to the Association is $ 20,000, which bears interest at
prime plus 2.5%. As at December 31, 2012, the amount drawn from the line of credit was
$ nil (2011 - $ nil).

6. Reserve Fund

The reserve fund is used to fund expenses, normally of a capital nature, that are approved by
the Association. It is the policy of the Association that the operating fund net revenue or
deficit for the year be transferred to or from the reserve fund.

7. Lease Commitments

The Association is currently committed to minimum monthly lease payments in the amount
of $ 1,200 for a five-year period ending July 15, 2017.

In addition, the Association has committed to the following annual maintenance contract
payments for the installation, maintenance, and storage of Christmas decorations for the next

two years:
$
2013 11,872
2014 11,872

The Association is also committed to the following annual minimum lease payments for the
rental of equipment for the next three years:

$
2013 6,267
2014 6,267
2015 3,134
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ST. CATHARINES DOWNTOWN ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

8. Related Party Transactions

Accounts receivable includes $ 27,746 (2011 - $ 26,673) due from the City of St. Catharines.
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities includes $ 9,050 (2011 - $ 392) due to the City of
St. Catharines.

10
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ST. CATHARINES DOWNTOWN ASSOCTATION

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES Schedule 1
for the year ended December 31, 2012
(Unaudited)
Budget Actual
2012 2011
$ $

Events

12 Days of Christmas 6,143

Art City

Chili cook off 1,413

Classic Car Show 3,540

Full moon tours 780

Historical ghost walking tours 2,573

Movie nights 538

14,987

See accompanying notes
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ST. CATHARINES DOWNTOWN ASSOCIATION

SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES Schedule 2
for the year ended December 31, 2012

(Unaudited) _
Budget  Actual Actual
2012 L g 2011
$ . $
Administration .
Accommodations 6,000 8700 5,976
Communications equipment 10,000 . 10382 9,607
Insurance 750 e 729
Professional fees 6,500 . 604 6,605
Salaries and payroll taxes 145,000 140811 126,160
Supplies 3200 4778 3,732
171,450 171,455 152,809
Amortization .
Banners . - 6,571
Computers . 57 190
Garbage receptacles . 199 1,248
Holiday decor - 15410 13,927
Kiosks . 2,230
Planters . )66l 2,667
. 22605 26,833
Development .
Annual general meeting 600 1356 375
Business Development Program 1,800 . 1429 1,508
Committee/board/staft development 3,000 2,676 2,589
Development/revitalization 2,000 . 19 3,218
Membership/resources 1,000 - 1397 984
Newsletter/supplements 500 . 332 217
Safety 35000 24938 20,350
Website 6,000 6870 125
49900 47,112 29,366

See accompanying notes
12
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ST. CATHARINES DOWNTOWN ASSOCIATION

SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES Schedule 2 - continued
for the year ended December 31, 2012

(Unaudited) -
Budget ~ Actual Actual
2012 oy 2011
E .
Events ‘
Art City 10,000 . 22339
Chili cook off . 2,584
Christmas 15,000 ; 35,952 - 27,015
Classic Car Show 12,500 . 22150 12,825
Full moon tours . 4 413
Historical ghost walking tours 500 320 1,469
Movie nights . 3,686
Downtown D'Lish 6,000 6,’759 , 5,617
44,000 90914 53,609
Media and Visual Marketing .
Beautification/maintenance/identification 27,000 12,061 14,438
General marketing 45,000 47676 58,366
Kiosks 1,000 . 2347 1,779
Marketing campaign 25,000 26904 22,770
Mini-lights . 65
Sponsorship 7,000 6,113 3,576
105,000 95266 100,929
Tourism . o
Advertising 10,000 o 8979 6,406
Membership directory : : 1,119
10,000 . 8779 7,525

See accompanying notes
13
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board Members of the St. Catharines Public Library Board,
Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of
The Corporation of the City of St. Catharines

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the St. Catharines Public Library
Board, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2012, and the
statements of operations and accumulated surplus, cash flows and change in net financial assets for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

In common with many non-profit organizations, the Board derives part of its revenue in the
Endowment and Trust Fund from the general public in the form of donations and fundraising, the
completeness of which is not susceptible of satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly, our
verification of these revenues was limited to the amounts recorded in the records of the Board and
we were not able to determine whether any adjustments might be necessary to donations revenue,
trust funds and financial assets.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the St. Catharines Public Library Board as at December 31, 2012, and the results of its
operations, cash flows and change in net financial assets for the year then ended in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

J
St. Catharines, Ontario

April 4, 2013 CRAWFORD, SMITH AND SWALLOW
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP

LICENSED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



ST. CATHARINES PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31, 2012
2011
$
Financial Assets
Cash - note 2 3,077,505
Investments - note 3 994,897
Accounts receivable 40,095
4,112,497
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 444,670
Deferred income 55,508
Post-employment benefits - note 4 358,005 329,125
Long-term liabilities - note 5 L 1,56 1,634 1,621,750
12311635 2,451,053
Net Financial Assets 1452305 1,661,444
Non-Financial Assets k:
Tangible capital assets - schedule 1 7,385,170
Prepaid expenses 38,990
7,424,160
Accumulated Surplus - note 6 9,085,604

| Signed on beha ﬁggfe ﬂ/&rg
//g/ i :/{{j{%gw " Director
nTlp M (/ A ,)( (\/\ Director

See accompanying notes
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ST. CATHARINES PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

for the year ended December 31, 2012

(Unaudited)
Budget Actual
2012 2011
$ $
Revenues
Municipal contribution -

City of St. Catharines 5,195,200 5,082,450
Province of Ontario regular grant 228,600 228,616
Special grants . 36 38,940
Other 205,300 27 133 252,321

5,629,100 5735927 5,602,327
Expenses . . ~~
Salaries, wages and payroll taxes 3,892,400 3,576,418 3,476,750
Library materials 145,085 141,569 139,089
Occupancy 468,600 480,737 483,003
General and administration 219,600 - 83 . 194,475
Interest
Amortization 858,307
4,725,685 5,151,624
Annual Surplus 903,415 ; ,162 450,703
Accumulated Surplus, Beginning of Year 0,085,604 9085604 8,634,901
Accumulated Surplus, End of Year 9,989,019 9,453,766 9,085,604

See accompanying notes
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ST. CATHARINES PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

Operations
Annual surplus

Uses
Increase in accounts receivable
Increase in prepaid expenses
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Decrease in deferred income

Sources
Decrease in accounts receivable
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Increase in deferred income
Increase in post-employment benefits

Non-cash charges to operations
Amortization of tangible capital assets

Net change in cash from operations

Investing
Increase in investments

Capital
Acquisition of tangible capital assets

Financing
Long-term debt issued
Long-term debt repaid

Net increase in cash from financing

Increase (Decrease) in Cash Position

Cash Position, Beginning of Year

Cash Position, End of Year

(1,426,338)

(60116
0110

(362,537)
3,077,505

2011

450,703

(30,367)

(30,367)

1,377
154,964
4,363
13,804

174,508

858,307

1,453,151

(24,771)

(13,870)

(2,589,740)

1,760,000
(138,250)

1,621,750

460,390
2,617,115

3,077,505

See accompanying notes
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ST. CATHARINES PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

2011
$
Annual Surplus 450,703
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (2,589,740)
Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 858,307
Change in Prepaid Expenses (30,367)
Decrease in Net Financial Assets (1,311,097)
Net Financial Assets, Beginning of Year 2,972,541
Net Financial Assets, End of Year 1,661,444

See accompanying notes
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ST. CATHARINES PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

Organization

1.

The St. Catharines Public Library Board (the "Board") was established in January, 1888
pursuant to City of St. Catharines By-law #615 and operates four branches within St.
Catharines, Ontario. The branches are known as Grantham, William Hamilton Merritt,
Centennial and Port Dalhousie.

Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Board are the representations of management prepared in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards for local governments as
recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board ("PSAB") of the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants. Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopted by the Board
are as follows:

Accrual accounting
The accrual method of reporting revenue and expenses has been used.

Investments
Investments are carried at fair market value.

Non-financial assets
Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use
in the provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year,
and are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.

Tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets are recorded at historical cost. Cost includes all directly
attributable expenditures in the acquisition, construction, development and/or betterment
of the asset required to install the asset at the location.

Amortization is recorded to reflect the cost, net of anticipated residual value, associated
with the use of the asset in providing services on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of the asset. Additions during the year are amortized from the month of
acquisition. Disposals are amortized until the month of disposition. Gains and/or losses
on the disposal of an asset are recorded on the statement of operations and accumulated
surplus as "gain/loss on disposal of assets".

The historical cost of works of art or historical treasures have not been assigned to these
assets nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Asset Class Period
Buildings - 25-75 years
Building improvements - 20-30 years
Collection - 7 years
Furniture and equipment - 10-100 years
Information technology - 3-10 years
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ST. CATHARINES PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

1. Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Deferred revenue
Funds received for specific purposes are accounted for as deferred income until the Board
discharges the obligation which lead to the receipt of the funds.

Post-employment benefits
The Board pays certain medical, dental and life insurance benefits on behalf of its retired
employees. The Board recognizes these post-retirement costs in the period in which the
employees render their services. See note 4.

Use of estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector
accounting standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

2. Cash

The total balance of cash is comprised of the following:

2011
Cash - operating 2,677,510 3,062,137
Cash - trust funds ' : 37438 15,368

2,714,968 3,077,505

3. Investments

The total balance of investments is comprised of the following:

. 0 2011
Investments - operating fund . 22 1,55‘9‘ 218,655
Investments - trust funds 787,208 776,242
1,008,767 994,897

4. Post-Employment Benefits ;
2012 2011
$ $

Vacation pay 58,942 46,744
Post-retirement benefits 299,063 282,381
' 358,005 329,125
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ST. CATHARINES PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

4. Post-Employment Benefits - continued

Vacation Pay

As at December 31, 2012 employees of the St. Catharines Public Library Board have
accumulated vacation credits in the amount of $ 58,942 (2011 - $ 46,744). These credits
must be used within the next fiscal year.

Post-Retirement Benefits

The St. Catharines Public Library Board pays certain medical, dental and life insurance
benefits on behalf of its retired employees. The accrued benefit liability was determined by
actuarial valuation using a discount of 4.75% (2011 - 4.75%).

Defined Benefit Plan Information

2012 2011
s $

Employee benefit plan assets ~ -
Employee benefit plan liabilities 299,063 282,381
Employee benefit plan deficit 299,063 282,381

0 2011
Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year 282381 274,813
Expense for the year 22,508 21,977
Amortization of actuarial loss (gain) ; 656 656
Benefits paid during the year (6,482) (15,065)
Accrued benefit obligation, end of year 299,063 282,381

As a result of an actuarial valuation conducted in 2011 for the year ending December 31,
2010, it was determined that an actuarial loss of $ 5,902 existed. This amount is being
amortized over the expected average remaining service life of the employee group, which in
this case, is 9 years or $ 656 per annum. The unamortized value remaining is § 3,934. The
actual obligation is $ 302,997.

The main actuarial assumptions employed for the valuation are as follows:

General Inflation - Future general inflation levels, as measured by changes in the Consumer
Price Index ("CPI"), were assumed at 2% in 2010 and thereafter.

Salary Levels - Future salary and wage levels were assumed to increase at 2.0% per annum
for the year 2010 through 2015 and 3.30% thereafier.

Medical Costs - Medical costs were assumed to increase at a rate of 8%, graded down to
7.63% in 2011, 7.25% in 2012, 6.88% in 2013, 6.50% in 2014, 6.13% in 2015, 5.75% in
2016, 5.38% in 2017, and 5.0% in 2018 and each year thereafter.

Dental Costs - Dental costs were assumed to increase at a rate of 5.0% and each year
thereafter.
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ST. CATHARINES PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

5. Long-Term Liabilities

(a) The balance of long-term liabilities reported on the "Statement of Financial Position" is

as follows:

Long-term liabilities incurred by the Board
which bear interest at 3.8%

2012
$

1,561,634

2011
$

1,621,750

(b) Principal payments due over the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

$
2013 62,422
2014 64,816
2015 67,303
2016 69,885
2017 72,566
Thereafter 1,224,642

(c) Interest expense on long-term liabilities amounted to $ 77,199 (2011 - nil) for the year.

6. Accumulated Surplus

2012 2011
$ $
Invested in tangible capital assets 7,928,149 7,385,170
Operating fund 94,700 132,000
Reserve funds 2,525,891 2,729,002
Trust funds
Architects 756 755
Nevada tickets 3,694 3,677
Endowment and trust 820,215 785,875
824,665 790,307
Amount to be recovered - post-employment benefits (358,005) (329,125)
Amount to be recovered - long-term liabilities (1,561,634) (1,621,750)
9,453,766 9,085,604
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ST. CATHARINES PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

7. Trust Funds

Architects fund
This fund has been allocated for the purchase of architectural material through an
agreement with the Niagara Society of Architects. The funds along with accumulated
interest are maintained in a separate bank account at the TD Canada Trust.

Endowment and trust fund
This fund has been allocated by the Board for the future improvement of collections and
access to collections, provision of library support programs and purchase of equipment,
furniture and such other capital projects to improve library service above and beyond
that normally funded by provincial or municipal funds. These funds along with
accumulated interest and donations are held in a separate bank account at TD Canada
Trust and in an investment account at Scotia McLeod.

Nevada tickets fund
This fund has been allocated by the Board for the same purpose as the Endowment and
Trust fund as detailed above. These funds along with accumulated interest are
maintained in a separate bank account at TD Canada Trust.

8. Long-Term Leases

Grantham Branch
As at December 31, 2012, the lease for the new Grantham Branch with the City of St.
Catharines is still being negotiated.

William Hamilton Merritt Branch
The Board is currently committed to the following minimum lease payments for the next

four years:
$
2013 39,312
2014 40,112
2015 40,375
2016 9,956
The Board is also obligated to pay a proportionate share of operating costs and property
taxes.
Centennial Public Library
The lease with the City of St. Catharines, for a nominal amount, expires December 31,
2017.
Port Dalhousie Branch
Rent is paid on a yearly basis to the City of St. Catharines in the amount of $ 600 with no
set date of expiry.

11
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ST. CATHARINES PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

9. Pension Agreements

The Board makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System
("OMERS"), which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of 65 members of its staff. The plan
is a defined benefit plan which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received
by the employees based on the length of service and rates of pay.

The amount contributed to OMERS for 2012 was § 172,999 (2011 - $ 158,859) for current
service and is included as an expenditure in the statement of operations and accumulated
surplus.

10. Economic Dependence

The Board receives a significant portion of its revenues for operations from the following
sources:

City of St. Catharines
Province of Ontario

12
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ST. CATHARINES PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD

SCHEDULE OF TRUST FUND ACTIVITIES Schedule 2
for the year ended December 31, 2012
2011
Total
$

Revenues

Book revenue 12,737

Donations 5,648

Interest 7,364

25,749

Expenditures ;

Library materials 5,161 5,303
Net Change in Trust .

Fund 34340 20,446
Trust Fund, . - .

Beginning of Year . 3,677 ~ 755 785‘,‘875 . 9 769,861
Trust Fund, - - s :

End of Year 756 820215 790,307
See accompanying notes

14
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ST. CATHARINES PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD

SCHEDULE OF OTHER REVENUE Schedule 3
for the year ended December 31, 2012
(Unaudited)
Budget Actual
2012 2011
$ $
Fines and memberships 129,000 129,618
Interest 23,000 40,444
Photocopying 5,700 5,106
Programming fees 8,300 8,073
Sundry 39,300 50,695
Donations 5,648
Book revenue 12,737
205,300 252,321
See accompanying notes
15
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ST. CATHARINES PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD

SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES Schedule 4
for the year ended December 31, 2012

(Unaudited)
Budget Actual
2012 2011
$ $
Salaries, Wages and Payroll Taxes
Library and clerical 3,043,900 2,736,383
Maintenance 176,129 149,182
Payroll taxes 672,371 591,185
3,892,400 3,476,750
Library Materials
Binding 13,400 15,565
Microfilm 8,425 9,414
Periodicals 94,460 91,927
Processing 28,800 22,183
145,085 139,089
Occupancy
Communications 43,000 41,720
Insurance 32,900 32,342
Rent and taxes 72,000 107,623
Repairs and maintenance 137,100 137,971
Security 14,600 14580 14,350
Utilities 169,000 152,2597 . 148,997
468,600 480,737 483,003
General and Administration k k
Audio visual supplies 4,200 1,817
Catalogue support system service 600 425
Data processing 6,700 6,700
Equipment rental 7,800 6,421
Equipment repairs and maintenance 83,800 70,700
Library supplies 30,000 26,105
Printing and stationary 3,400 672
Professional fees 20,000 17,257
Programming 10,600 6,939
Sundry 12,500 18,096
Training and development 13,500 12,769
Transportation and postage 26,500 26,574
219,600 - 208,483 194,475

See accompanying notes
16
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Commissioners of the St. Catharines Transit Commission - Urban Service,
Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of
The Corporation of the City of St. Catharines

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of St. Catharines Transit Commission -
Urban Service, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2012, and
the statements of operations and accumulated surplus, cash flows, and change in net financial
liabilities for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material

misstaterment.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of St. Catharines Transit Commission - Urban Service as at December 31, 2012, and the results of
its operations, cash flows and change in net financial liabilities for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

J
St. Catharines, Ontario

February 28, 2013 CRAWFORD, SMITH AND SWALLOW
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP

LICENSED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



ST. CATHARINES TRANSIT COMMISSION - URBAN SERVICE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
December 31, 2012

2011
5
Financial Assets
Cash 757,069
Accounts receivable 674,870
Due from Paratransit System of St. Catharines - note 5 1,276,852
2,708,791
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 915,099
Deferred income 407,702
Due to City of St. Catharines - note 4 1,733,598
Employee future benefits - note 2 1,531,842
4,588,241
Net Financial Liabilities (1,879,450)
Non-Financial Assets
Tangible capital assets - schedule 1 27,024,666
Inventories 655,509
Prepaid expenses 29,706
27,709,881
Accumulated Surplus - note 3 25,830,431

g? behalfof the Service:
/ C) Chairman

</,, dea_ Member

See accompanying notes
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ST. CATHARINES TRANSIT COMMISSION - URBAN SERVICE
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

for the year ended December 31, 2012

(Unaudited)
Budget Actual
2012 2011
$ $
Revenues
Municipal contribution -

City of St. Catharines 7,060,446 7,461,096
Passenger farebox income 7,621,599 6,948,892
Thorold service municipal contribution 505,622 480,156
Intown charters 55,000 53,455
School Board farecard income 87,500 370,410
Inter-municipal transit capital funding 1,284,582
Inter-municipal transit contract 802,176 250,212
Bus advertising 100,000 100,000
Shelter advertising 100,000 90,161
Other income 137,000 243,437
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets (1,867)

16,469,343 17,280,534
Expenses - schedule 2
Transportation 8,003,830 7,404,771
Fuel 2,622,300 2,44 2,273,771
Equipment and vehicle maintenance 2,833,922 ‘ 2,’91;3,9‘66“ 2,724,570
Premises and plant 775,024 1,005,152 942,540
General and administration 2,234,267 2',344‘,05‘3 2,245,513
Amortization ; 2,937,884 ‘ 2,918,674
16,469,343 19,736,904 18,509,839
Annual Deficit (1,613,662)  (1,229,305)
Accumulated Surplus, Beginning of Year 25830431 25830431 27,059,736
Accumulated Surplus, End of Year 25,830,431 24,216,769 25,830,431

See accompanying notes
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ST. CATHARINES TRANSIT COMMISSION - URBAN SERVICE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

Operations
Annual deficit

Uses
Increase in accounts receivable
Increase in due from Paratransit System of St. Catharines
Increase in inventories
Increase in prepaid expenses
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Decrease in due to City of St. Catharines

Sources
Decrease in accounts receivable
Decrease in due from Paratransit System of St. Catharines
Decrease in inventories
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Increase in deferred income
Increase in due to City of St. Catharines
Increase in employee future benefits

2011

(1,229,305)

Non-cash charges to operations
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets

(139,761)
(104,126)
(80,195)
(1,392)
(151,792)
(477,266)
o
129,046
263,101
. 67,872
_ 109,448 123,837
797,875 454,810

2937884 2,918,674
. 1,867

2.937.884 2,920,541

Net change in cash from operations

1,574,645 1,668,780

Capital .
Acquisition of tangible capital assets - (1,468409)  (1,830,786)
Increase (Decrease) in Cash Position ‘ 10‘6,‘2‘3‘6‘ - (162,006)
Cash Position, Beginning of Year 757060 919,075
Cash Position, End of Year 863,305 757,069

See accompanying notes
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ST. CATHARINES TRANSIT COMMISSION - URBAN SERVICE

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
for the year ended December 31, 2012

2011
$
Annual Deficit (1,229,305)
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (1,830,786)
Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 2,918,674
Loss on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 1,867
Change in Inventories (80,195)
Change in Prepaid Expenses (1,392)
Increase in Net Financial Liabilities (221,137)
Net Financial Liabilities, Beginning of Year (1,658,313)

Net Financial Liabilities, End of Year (2,39 ,296) - (1,879,450)

See accompanying notes
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ST. CATHARINES TRANSIT COMMISSION - URBAN SERVICE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

Organization

The St. Catharines Transit Commission (the "Service") was established pursuant to the St.
Catharines Act 1961. The purpose of the Service is to provide a safe, courteous and reliable
transit service which responds to the needs of the community.

1. Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Service are the representations of management prepared in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards established by the Public
Sector Accounting Board ("PSAB") of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants. The
financial statements have, in management's opinion, been properly prepared within
reasonable limits of materiality and within the framework of the accounting policies
summarized below:

Accrual accounting
The accrual method of reporting revenue and expenses has been used.

Non-financial assets
Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use
in the provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year,
and are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.

Tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets are recorded at historic cost. Cost includes all directly attributable
expenditures in the acquisition, construction, development and/or betterment of the asset

required to install the asset at the location.

Amortization is recorded to reflect the cost, net of anticipated residual value, associated
with the use of the asset in providing services on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of the asset. Additions during the year are amortized from the month of
acquisition. Disposals are amortized until the month of disposition. Gains and/or losses
on the disposal of an asset are recorded on the statement of operations and accumulated
surplus as "gain/loss on disposal of tangible capital assets."

Asset Class Period

Land improvements - 15-25 years

Building - 30-75 years

Structures - 10 - 25 years

Equipment - 10 - 30 years

Furniture - 20 years

IT equipment - 3-15years

Vehicles - 5-20years
Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and replacement cost.

crawford smith (& swallow



ST. CATHARINES TRANSIT COMMISSION - URBAN SERVICE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

1.

2.

Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Investment by the Corporation of the City of St. Catharines
The investment by the Corporation of the City of St. Catharines is recorded at cost. See
notes 3 and 4.

Operations
The financial statements include only the operations of the Service. The operations of the
Paratransit System of St. Catharines are reported separately.

Employee future benefits
The Service pays certain medical, dental and life insurance benefits on behalf of its retired
employees. The Service recognizes these post-retirement costs in the period in which the
employees rendered the services. See note 2.

Use of estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector
accounting standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Employee Future Benefits

e 2011
Vacation pay 79,296 79,399
Post-retirement benefits 1,56;1,994 ~ 1,452,443

1,641,290 1,531,842

Vacation Pay

As at December 31, 2012, employees of the Service have accumulated vacation pay credits
in the amount of $ 79,296 (2011 - $79,399). These credits must be used within the next

fiscal year.
Post-Retirement Benefits

The Service pays certain medical, dental and life insurance benefits on behalf of its retired
employees. The accrued benefit liability was determined by actuarial valuation using a
discount rate of 4.75% (2011 - 4.75%).

crawford smith (& swallow



ST. CATHARINES TRANSIT COMMISSION - URBAN SERVICE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

2. Employee Future Benefits - continued

Defined Benefit Plan Information

2011
$

Employee benefit plan assets

Employee benefit plan liabilities 1,452,443
Employee benefit plan deficit 1,452,443
Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year 1,317,158
Expense for the year 158,408
Amortization of actuarial losses 45,797
Benefits paid during the year (68,920)
Accrued benefit obligation, end of year 1,452,443

As a result of an actuarial valuation conducted in 2011 for the year ending December 31,
2010, it was determined that an actuarial loss of $ 412,169 existed. This amount is being
amortized over the expected average remaining service life of the employee group, which in
this case, is 9 years or $ 45,797 per annum. The unamortized value remaining is $ 274,779.
The actual obligation is $ 1,836,773,

The main actuarial assumptions employed for the valuation are as follows:
General Inflation - Future general inflation levels, as measured by changes in the Consumer
Price Index ("CPI"), were assumed at 2.0% in 2012 and thereafter.

Salary Levels - Future salary and wage levels were assumed to increase at 2.0% per annum
for the year 2012 through 2015 and 3.3% per annum thereafter.

Medical Costs - Medical costs were assumed to increase at a rate of 7.25%, graded down to
6.88% in 2013, 6.50% in 2014, 6.13% in 2015, 5.75% in 2016, 5.38% in 2017, and 5.00% in
2018 and each year thereafter.

Dental Costs - Dental costs were assumed to increase at a rate of 5.0% and each year
thereafter.

3. Accumulated Surplus

2012 2011
§ $
Invested in tangible capital assets 25,555,191 27,024,666
Operating fund ; .
Reserve fund for future tangible capital assets 277445 312,184
Investment by the City of St. Catharines 25423 25,423
Amount to be recovered - post-employment benefits ( 1,‘6’41,290) (1,531,842)

24,216,769 25,830,431

crawford smith (R swallow



ST. CATHARINES TRANSIT COMMISSION - URBAN SERVICE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

4. Economic Dependence

The Corporation of the City of St. Catharines is obligated to subsidize the Service for any
excess of expense over revenue.

5. Related Party Transactions

The Service charges the Paratransit System of St. Catharines for certain costs. These charges
are as follows:

5 $
Transportation ; . 7142 7,142
Fuel | 1104 1,104
Equipment and vehicle maintenance 1104 f 1,104
Plant and premises ’ 36,216 36,216
General administration . ?4;33-2? 4,332

The Corporation of the City of St. Catharines charges the Service for certain costs on a flat
fee basis. These charges are as follows:

2012 2011
$ $
Data processing 9399 9,024
Downtown bus terminal rent . k 1 1
2012 First Street Louth land and building lease ‘ b : 1

Included in accounts receivable and accounts payable is $ nil and $ 143,329 respectively,
(2011 - $ nil and $ 9,024) due from and to the Corporation of the City of St. Catharines.

6. Pension Agreement

The Service makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System
("OMERS"), which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of 137 members of its staff. The
plan is a defined benefit plan which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be
received by the employees based on the length of service and rates of pay.

The amount contributed to OMERS for 2012 was $ 640,057 (2011 - $ 570,366) for current
service and is included as an expense on the statement of operations and accumulated
surplus.

10
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ST. CATHARINES TRANSIT COMMISSION - URBAN SERVICE

crawiord smith (& swallow

SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES Schedule 2
for the year ended December 31, 2012
(Unaudited)
Budget Actual
2012 2011
$ $
Transportation
Bus operators wages 5,688,572 5,329,837
Payroll taxes 1,991,000 1,761,141
7,679,572 7,090,978
Thorold Transcab service 145,158 147,792
Uniforms 35,500 30,134
Licences 29,800 30,200
Fare media 70,000 61,709
Miscellaneous 43,800 43 958
8,003,830 7,404,771
Fuel
Gasoline and diesel fuel 2,517,300 2,207,077
Lubricants 105,000 66,694
2,622,300 2,273,771
Equipment and Vehicle Maintenance .
Mechanics wages 053,155 - 905,666 955,374
Servicemen wages 399,043 385617 365,207
Mechanics payroll taxes 333,604 ~ 318381 309,354
Servicemen payroll taxes 139,665 13213 118,389
1,825,467 1,741,796 1,748,324
Bus tires 124,654 97976 111,269
Materials 829,600 1,033,746 819,567
Radios 12,000 - 7,685 . 10,106
Service and staff vehicles 15,375 1L84{) 5 14,059
Mechanics tool replacements 5,500 5,4(}4 6,791
Miscellaneous 21,326 ; 15,519 14,454
2,833,922 2913966 2,724,570
See accompanying notes
12



ST. CATHARINES TRANSIT COMMISSION - URBAN SERVICE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES Schedule 2 - continued
for the year ended December 31, 2012

(Unaudited)
Budget Actual
2012 2011
$ $
Premises and Plant
Utilities 230,000 227,295
Garage supplies 33,259 32,483
Building maintenance and janitorial 181,000 335,774
Bus shelters 10,558 2,920
Property taxes 121,200 106,833
Fire and boiler insurance 4,257 4,082
Carlisle Square terminal maintenance 194,750 233,153
775,024 942,540
General Administration -

Salaries 1,176,180 1,136,413 1,093,860
Payroll taxes 410,896 517 : 490,243
1,587,076 1,584,103

Insurance 330,000 344,673
Office 119,630 134235 104,372
Telephone 29,561 - 34,247 . 32,266
Professional fees 29,740 19,510 35,795
Advertising 65,000 " 62,194 66,620
Miscellaneous 73,260 ~ ~72,‘224  77,684

2,234,267 2,344,053 2,245,513

See accompanying notes
13
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Commissioners of the Paratransit System of St. Catharines,
Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of
The Corporation of the City of St. Catharines

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Paratransit System of St.
Catharines, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2012, and the
statements of operations and accumulated surplus, cash flows and change in net financial assets for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Paratransit System of St. Catharines as at December 31, 2012, and the results of its
operations, cash flows and change in net financial assets for the year then ended in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards.

/
St. Catharines, Ontario

February 28, 2013 CRAWFORD, SMITH AND SWALLOW
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP

LICENSED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



PARATRANSIT SYSTEM OF ST. CATHARINES
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31, 2012
2011
$
Financial Assets
Cash 31,991
Accounts receivable
Due from City of St. Catharines - note 3 1,281,652
1,313,643
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,800
Due to St. Catharines Transit Commission -
Urban Service - note 5 1,276,852
1,278,652
Net Financial Assets 34,991
Non-Financial Assets
Tangible capital assets - schedule 1 457.596
Accumulated Surplus - note 2 492,587

Si on behalf of the System:

Chairman

A e S
K/ //g . m@,‘m Member
4

See accompanying notes
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PARATRANSIT SYSTEM OF ST. CATHARINES

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

for the year ended December 31, 2012

(Unaudited)
Budget . Aol Actual
2012 . 0 2011
$ . $
Revenues
Municipal contribution - .

City of St. Catharines 1,130,700 ‘ i‘,~1¢~5f5,,;€)56_ 1,281,652
Passenger farebox 95,000 ‘ 12,6‘8 ‘ 94,046
Thorold contract services 78,000 71201 78,503
Donations _ 13900 13,000
Interest . e 214
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets 25,619 ‘

1,303,700 1,368,109 1,467,415

Expenses - schedule 2 -
Transportation 639,737 230 636,167
Fuel 81,100 66,671 67,410
Equipment and vehicle maintenance 192,941 8,13 185,385
Plant and premises 36,207 36,216
General administration 188,715 198,816
Taxi contract 86,000 77,286
Thorold Paratransit services 79,000 . 13000 79,720
Amortization 99429 115,842
1,303,700 1,382,245 1,396,842
Annual Surplus (Deficit) ‘ (l4,£36} ~ 70,573
Accumulated Surplus, Beginning of Year 492,587 492,587 - 422,014
Accumulated Surplus, End of Year 492,587 | . 492,587

See accompanying notes
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PARATRANSIT SYSTEM OF ST. CATHARINES

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

Operations
Annual surplus (deficit)

Uses
Increase in accounts receivable
Increase in due from City of St. Catharines
Decrease in due to St. Catharines Transit Commission -
Urban Service

Sources
Decrease in donations receivable
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Decrease in due from City of St. Catharines
Increase in due to St. Catharines Transit Commission -
Urban Service

Non-cash charges to operations
Amortization on tangible capital assets
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets

Net change in cash from operations

Capital
Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets

Net increase (decrease) in cash from capital

Increase in Cash Position

Cash Position, Beginning of Year

Cash Position, End of Year

012 2011
- (14.136) 70,573
. (107,726)
129, 046 ., 
;““'(331 123) (107,726)
. 3,000
. 59 600
126,596
104,126
107,726
115,842
B3l 115,842
. ‘(‘Ii44,~8‘§33)f 186,415
. (45 5@9), (173,201)
156568 (173200)
i ff 13214
31991 18,777
43,756 31,991

See accompanying notes
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PARATRANSIT SYSTEM OF ST. CATHARINES

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS

for the year ended December 31, 2012

2012 2011
$ $

Annual Surplus (Deficit) (14,136) 70,573
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (45,509) (173,201)
Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 99,429 115,842
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital

Assets 202,077
Gain on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (25,619)
Increase in Net Financial Assets 216,242 13,214
Net Financial Assets, Beginning of Year 34,991 21,777
Net Financial Assets, End of Year 251,233 34,991

See accompanying notes
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PARATRANSIT SYSTEM OF ST. CATHARINES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

Organization

The Paratransit System of St. Catharines (the "System") was established pursuant to a City of
St. Catharines (the "City") by-law in 1979. The System provides transportation to physically
challenged residents within the City in a safe, courteous and reliable manner.

1. Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the System are the representations of management prepared in
accordance with the Canadian public sector accounting standards established by the Public
Sector Accounting Board ("PSAB") of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants. The
financial statements have, in management's opinion, been properly prepared within
reasonable limits of materiality and within the framework of the accounting policies
summarized below:

Accrual accounting
The accrual method of accounting for revenue and expenses has been used.

Non-financial assets
Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use
in the provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year,
and are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.

Tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets are recorded at historic cost. Cost includes all directly attributable
expenditures in the acquisition, construction, development and/or betterment of the asset
required to install the asset at the location.

Amortization is recorded to reflect the cost, net of anticipated residual value, associated
with the use of the asset in providing services on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of the asset. Additions during the year are amortized from the month of
acquisition. Disposals are amortized until the month of disposition. Gains and/or losses
on the disposal of an asset are recorded on the statement of operations and accumulated
surplus as "gain/loss on disposal of tangible capital assets."

Asset Class Period
Furniture - 20 years
Vehicles -5 - 12 years

Working Capital
The working capital will remain at nil while the Corporation of the City of St. Catharines
and the Province of Ontario subsidize the annual deficit in full.

Operations
The financial statements include only the operations of the System. The operations of the
St. Catharines Transit Commission - Urban Service are reported separately.

crawford smith (R swallow



PARATRANSIT SYSTEM OF ST. CATHARINES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

1. Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Pledges
The amount of pledges to donate funds to the System are included in revenues in the year
the amounts are received or receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably
estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Use of estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector
accounting standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

2. Accumulated Surplus

2011
$
Invested in tangible capital assets 457,596
Operating fund
Reserve fund 34,991
492,587

3. Economic Dependence

The Corporation of the City of St. Catharines is obligated to subsidize the System for any
excess of expenditure over revenue.

4. Pension Agreement

The System makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System
("OMERS"), which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of eight members of its staff. The
plan is a defined benefit plan which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be
received by the employees based on the length of service and rates of pay.

The amount contributed to OMERS for 2012 was $ 34,922 (2011 - $ 29,646) for current
service and is included as an expense on the statement of operations and accumulated
surplus.

crawiord smith (R swallow



PARATRANSIT SYSTEM OF ST. CATHARINES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2012

5. Related Party Transactions

The St. Catharines Transit Commission - Urban Service charges the System for certain costs
on a flat fee basis. These charges were as follows:

2012 2011
. $
Transportation . 7,142 7,142
Fuel | - 1104 . 1,104
Equipment and vehicle maintenance . 1104 : 1,104
Plant and premises - 1 36,216 ~’ 36,216
General administration ~ ~ 4,332 ; 4,332

crawford smith (& swallow
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PARATRANSIT SYSTEM OF ST. CATHARINES

SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES Schedule 2
for the year ended December 31, 2012
(Unaudited)
Budget Actual
2012 2011
$ $
Transportation .
Bus operators wages and payroll taxes 633,245 664,090 629,025
Uniforms 5,892 = 5,892 5,892
Licences 450 1250 1,250
Miscellaneous 50 ..
639,737 671,232 . 636,167
Fuel .
Gasoline and diesel fuel 80,000 65,567 66,306
Lubricants 1,100 . 1,104 1,104
BL100 66671 67,410
Equipment and Vehicle Maintenance
Mechanics wages and payroll taxes 87,553 89,8064
Servicemen wages and payroll taxes 71,288 s ‘ 68,240
158,841 158,856 158,104
Parts 33,000 ‘ 8,178 ; 26,177
Radios 1,100 1 1'504: 1,104
192,941 168,138 185,385
See accompanying notes
11

crawiord smith (& swallow



PARATRANSIT SYSTEM OF ST. CATHARINES

SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES
for the year ended December 31, 2012

Schedule 2 - continued

(Unaudited) .
Budget Actudl Actual
2012 o012 2011
Plant and Premises .
Utilities 15,015 15024 15,024
Garage equipment supplies 2,060 2,064 2,064
Building and janitorial 7,715 7,716 7,716
Property taxes 10,817 10,812
Insurance 600 600 600
36,207 36,216 36,216
General Administration -
Dispatcher wages and payroll taxes 132,974 136,066 138,315
Insurance 48,565 48,564 53,952
Office supplies 2,679 - 7 6R8 2,688
Telephone 1,648 1,644
Professional fees 1,467 2,136
Advertising 882
Miscellaneous 500 81
188,715 198,816

See accompanying notes
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NIAGARA DISTRICT AIRPORT COMMISSION

. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
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PROFESSIONAL CORPORATICN |,




TREASURER'S REPORT for 2012

This has been a very challenging year resulting in exceedingly high demands placed
on staff and on the volunteer commission members who provide their time and
talents without any type of reimbursement. Individual members of the Airport
Commission have contributed significant numbers of hours endeavouring to make a
real difference for the Airport.

I am pleased to report that the Airport's excess of revenue over expenses from
operations was $45585 for 2012, This compares favourably to last year when
results were $35,578. The operating surplus now stands at $147,007, up from last
year's figure of $66,293 as restated and the capital surplus stands at $996 968,

We decided to adopt the Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards for not-for-
profit organizations advisedly. We believe this is in keeping with the nature and
business of the Airport. As a result, we are now reporting for the first time the
tangible capital assets (Property and Equipment) on the Statement of Financial
Position. We are also now amortizing tangible capital assets annually and reporting
deferred capital contributions taking into income the appropriate annual amount,

When adopting new accounting standards we are required to restate the previous
year's figures and adjust them to the new standards. Our auditors did this on our
behalf but we did not require a reauditof 2011. This endeavour has involved a
considerable workload for staff, the Chairman, myself and our auditors.

Our contribution of $160,000 towards the infrastructure project was made in
2012, but since it pertained to the 2011 year, it reduced the operating surplus from
$226,293 to $66,293 for the 201! year as restated.

Through a Request for Proposal (RFP) process, we signed contracts with a new
Fixed Base Operator (FBO), Allied Aviation, to handle essential airport services.
The fuel farm and other equipment were sold to Allied Aviation for $102,000,

On an overall basis we are happy with our financial results and I thank management
and staff for maximizing revenue and keeping our operating costs and cash flow
under control.

On behalf of the Niagara District Airport Commission,

Robert G. White, Treasurer March 6, 2013
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BRIDGMAN & DURKSEN
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
PROFESSIONWAL CORPORATION

. INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Mambers of N;iagafa District Airport Commission:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Niagara District Airport Commission, which
comprise the statement of financlal position as at December 31, 2012 and the staterments of revenues and
- expenditures, changes in net assats and cash flows far the year then ended, and a summary of significant
zecounting policies and other explaratory information. S .

Mana-gémeni’g Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management js responsible for the preparation and fair presentation-of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian. generally accapted accounting principles, and for such internal control as
management detarmines Is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. ' ' T '

Auditor's Respansibiity

Cur. responsibliity is o express an opinion on thesa financial statements 'bas_ed_ on our audit. We
conductad our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. - Those

standards require thal we: comply with ethical reduirements and pan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable essurance about whather the financial statements are free from material misstaterment,

An audit involves performing jpmcédures_ to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial staterrents. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,. including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due fo fraud or
“srror. In making those risk assessmants, the auditor considers internal control relevant fo the entity's

preparation and fair présentztion of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate In the circumstaricss, but riot for the purpose Of expressing an apinion on the effectiveness of }
the entity's internal control, An audit also inciudes evaluating the appropriatenass of atcounting poficies -
used and the reasonabiengss of accounting sstimates made Ly managament, as well as avaluating the.

averali presentation of the financial statéments.

“We believe that the audit e;viaéhce we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion. ' ' - : : _ . - o

5 Race Street, 51, Cuthirines, Ontario, L2R 3M1 905-682-6677 Fax 905-688-1881

 One Honegan Road, 0. Box 743, Virgil, Ontario, LOS 1TO 905-468-1659 Fax 905-468-2055 S
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independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Néagaré Disfrict Alrport Gommission (continued) .

. Oginion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Niagara District Airport Commission as at December 31, 2012 and the results of its operations and ifs
cash fiows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Comparative Information -

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 4 to the financial statements, which describes
that the Miagara District Airport Commission adopted Canadian public sector accouniing standards on
January 1, 2012 with a transition date of January 01, 2011 These standatds wers applied retrospectively
by management to the comparative information in these financlal statements, Including the statements of
financial position as at December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011, and the statements of revepues and
expenditures, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year ended Decernber 31, 2011 and refated
disclosures. Wea were not engaged to report on the restated comparative information, and as such, # s
tnaudited. . ' ' i

Repbrt on Other Legéi and Regu[afow Requirements -

As stated in the preceding paragraph, thé comparative figures as =t December 31, 2011 and January 1,
2011 and for the year ended December 31, 2011 have not been audited under the new basis of
accounting, ‘Canadian public sector accounting standards.  Althaugh™ these standards were applied
retrospectively by managenent to the comparative information in these financial statements, we arg not
able fo report, a8 required by section $6(2} of the Ontario Corporations Act, that the accaunting principles
have been applied on a basis consistant with that of the praceding year as we were not engaged to repart

on the restated comparative information.

$t. Catharines, Ontaric ~ - ' - CHARTERED ACCCUNTANTS
. March 5, 2013 . . PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

: . R : Authorized to practise public accounting by
The ingtitute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario

»

| BT EC L E -
 BRIDGMAN & DURKSEN .~ - _;
S CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS ' o ' :
' FPROFESSIONAL CORPORATION



NIAGARA DISTRICT AIRPCRT COMMISSION

CURRENT
Cash _
Accounts receivable
Tnventory
Prepaid expenses

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Note .3)

CURRENT
Accounts payable
Actrued liahilities

- Harmonized sales tax payable
Current portion of long term.debt (Note 7)

LONG TERM DEBT (Note 7)

 DEFERRED CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS (Note 8)

CAPITAL SURPLUS

. OPERATING SURPLUS (INTERNALLY
~ RESTRICTED)

DECEMBER 31, 2012

STATEMENT OF FINANGIAL POSITION

(Restated) - (Resiated)
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2012 2011 2041
- ASSETS
'$ 91606 $ 167,108 § 503,011
39,927 94,864 42,190
- 37,353 37,943
518 2,328 1,225
132,051 301,753 584,369
12,311,219 12,334,261 566,106
$ 12443270 $ 13,936,014 - $ 1150475
LIABILITIES
$ 14717 $ €018 39983
13,095 175,002 21817
7,232 341 189
62,600 50,000 .
97,044 285461 51,089
136,000 150,000 .
11,085,251 11,587,362 -
14,202,251 11,737,362 .
11,299,295 12,022,823 61,989
NET ASSETS | |
996,968 1,046,898 566,105
147,007 66,293 522,381
1,443,975 1,113,191 . 1,083486
$ 12,443,270 5 13.936,014 § 1150475
“ammissioner :
Commissianer -
The accompanying notes are an untegral part of these fmant;lal statements

BRIDGMAN & DURKSEN
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NIAGARA DISTRICT AIRPORT COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2812

Capial Operating . L
Fund  Fund 2012 2011
: L - (Restatad]
NET ASSETS - beginning nf year § 1045808 $ 66283 § 113191 § 622,381
* Adoptian of new acccauntmg : '_ B L
standards (Nofe §) - : o - - 566,108
Balance, heginning of year as restate 1,046,808 86,293 1,113,491 . 1,080,485
Excess of revenus uveroperatmg R ' o _
expenses - _ 30,784 S e © 30,784 . 24,705
Transfer of operatzng surp’ius o o o . _
internally resticted -~ .. _ (45,584 45,684 “ -
Transfer from internally restricted to : _
unrestricted for capt “tai addltgons {35,130) 35130 - -
MET ASSETS -end ofyear 5 D9606E § 147007 § 1443975 $ 1113191

| The accompanymg notes are an intagral part of these fmanclai statements g
- BRIDGMAN & DURKSEN 3 . 4
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NIAGARA DISTRICT AIRPORT COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

o

- PROVESSIONAL LORPORATEIN

2mMz2 2011
. {Resf'g;‘éd)
. REVENUE ' | o
Evenis $ 32,280 59 % 27,790 57
Iimterast 1,872 0.3 - 4,830 1.0
Landing and parking fees 15,048 2.9 13,961 - 28
Miscellanaous 38,790 A 20,368 4.2
Municipa! granis 268,778 . 48.2 280,848 51.8
Rentals CA75.021 M6 160,625 338
-Fuel sales, net. 22,635 4.1 5454 1.1
| | | 853424 1000 483,574 089
* OPERATING EXPENSES T |
B Maintenance, bullding and property © . 44,33G 8.1 . 36122 - 18
Maintenanse, vehiclas and 2quipment 36,341 55 33,015 5.8
Operations © 149,448 27.0 139,827 26.8
Personnel 283,220 : 51 2 239,532 49.5 _
| | 507,839 1.8 448208 927
© EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER -
o E)(PENSES FROM OFERAT?ONS 45 5485 8.2 35,578 7.2
| OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES) o
Capital contributions (Note 8) 521,114 94 2 . 283,307 - '53.5
- Gain on digposat of asseta 8,761 186 - -
Amorhzat!on ' ~{544.673) {38 4} (204,180 {60.83
(14801 (28) (10,873) (23)
 EXCESS gDEcmiEch}oF REVENUE T ;
OVER EXPENﬁiTURES $ .. 30,784 -85 . § 24705 4.8
: The accompanytng notea are &l intagrai pan of these financial statements '
: o
 BRIDOMAN & DURKSEN -
S ICHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS



NIAGARA DISTRICT AIRPORT COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

BRIDGMAN & DURKSEN -
CCHARTERED ADCOUNTANTS . - 0
 PROVESSIONAL CORVORATION

2012 201t
[Restated)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES - o |
Excess aof revente over operating expenses : . 5 30,784 § 24,705
itermns not affecting cash: . ' . o
Amortization of capiftal assels s : 44,673 294 180
Gain on disposal of assets _ ' - {8,781) -
. | 566,896 318,805
- Changes in nan-cash working capltat : : . “
. Accounts Teceivable L _ 55,037 (52,774
©nventory : : ' o o 37,353 : 590
Prepaid expenses . o : S 1,810 {1,103
Accounfs payable : S ol {45,401) - 20,135
Accrued lighilites . - {161,807} 163,185
Harmonized sales tax payabie/recoverable . : . 8831 152
N (108,217) 120,185
Cash flow from aperating__ abﬁ\xiti_es E N o 460,479 430,070
INVESTING ACTIVITIES - B R
Furchase of capita! assels - ' {114,878 (12,562,335)
Procesds on disposal of capital assefs - ' 102,000 S
Cash ﬂow'usé& by investing activities _' . ' {12,_&70} { ‘12‘562,335}' .
FINANCING AGTIVITIES : : )
Deferred capital contributions S B {621,411} 11,587,362
Praceeds fram long term financing _ : £8,000 200,006
- Repaymsnt of lang term debt : : (62 Gﬂﬂ) ' .
Cash flow from (used by] financing activities | . (5Z3A11) 11,787,362
' DECREASE IN CASHFLOW DR - [eE02) - (336,909
- CASH _—-heginnfing:of'_yearf S o ' o 167,408 503,011
CASH -end of year . . | R % 91608 § 167,108
" The accompanying notes are an infegral part of these financial statements



NIAGARA DISTRICT AIRPORT comﬁ;izs_ss;ou
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

DESGRIPTION OF BUSINESS
The ownership of the Niagara District Alrport was fransferred from the Federal Gavernment to the

Town of Nq’a’garaon the Laks in 19896, The Niagara District Airport Commission {"Commission™),
psiablishad In 1959, is antrusted with the cantrol and managsemant of the alrport as per an agreement

between the Town and the Compission dated Sepiember 13, 1998, The City of St. Gatharines, tha
City of Niagara Falls and the Town of Niagdra on the Lake have entered into an Airport Fundmg-
Agreement, which expires on Decembar 31, 2026. The sgreement established the Airport
Commission a8 a Joint Mumcupa! Sarvices Board under the Mumcipai Act and authorizes the

Gommtssmn e} hold al asrport assets in trust,

SUMMARY OF SEGNIF!CANT ACCOUNTING POLEC!ES :

F;rranclai reportzng framework

The Commissmn be;ng a governmeni not~?or-pi’oﬂt orgamzatron ¢chose o sstablish iheir finaricial
statements in accordance with Canadian pubfic sector accounﬁng standards; issued by the Canadian

- Insfitute of Chartered Actountants,

These ﬁnamiai stafements are the represené:aﬂons of managemeni prepared In accardance wst‘n
Canadian public secior accounting standards. The financial statements have, in managements

opinion, been properly preparad within reasonabie hmrts of materra! {y emd wsthin the framework t}f '

the accounting pohczes summanzed halow;

Revenua recog nition -

The Cornm fsgiar fc%iows the deferrat method of accourstzng for CQﬂtI'ibthlOn'S Capital grants are
credited 1o deferred capital confribution and recogrized in incoms on the same basis a3 ifie
amartization of the relzted capital assets. Unrestrictad contnbutzmns are Tecognized as ravenua when
received or receivable if the amount to be recfawed san be r@asonably est:mated and colflection is

_ reasonab y assyred. .

Qther unrestricied revenues such as fuel revenue, event revenue fanding and parking feas are

' recogmzed a4 revenue when earned.  Rental revenue from §and leasss are recogmzed oh a straight

i;ne basis aver ihe farm of tha agreemen?s

' F:nancxal instrumems

- F‘mancta& mstruments consist of accounts receivable and acoounts payable and accrued fiabit tsas

Financial instrurents are inflially recognized at their’ fair valie on the acquisition date and are

subseguently measured at amortized cost. Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an.

asset or paid to transfer s fability In an orderly transaction between rnarket participants at the

medsurement date.  Transaction ocosts are recorded as. adjus;ments to the initial faar vaiue :

recognzzed and amortized pver tha Iafe of the ﬁnanma! mstrument

Accounts payabie and accrued lizbilities have been dési gnateci @5 hel d for trading fi financial habainties

due to their inherent nature and are recorded on the balance sheet at their fair values, with any

. changes in fair valus bsing recordsd in other :ncame The fair vaiue of accounts payabte and- B
- accrued habihtses approx‘rmate their fair va!ue R . '

(conﬁn ue._s)
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NIAGARA DISTRICT AIRPORT COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFIGANT ACGOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
. Capital assets . | '

Capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated a_martizatﬁon'_ and are amortized over théir
estimated usefu! lives at the following rates and methods: - o

Land improvernents - 10- 75 years  straight Iine and declining balance
Buildings. ; 10 -B0 years . straighidine method ’
Equipment N N : -3-75years  straight-line method
Motor vehicles - . 5.20years  streight-line methiod

- Information technology . 3<12years  straightline method
Fumiture and fixtures : ' 5-100years  shaightiing method ..

© Any monies spent directly by any of the participating municipalities of any other third party on capital

ftems related to the: Niagara District Airport, as weli as any refated contributions received by those
' municipaliies or third party with respedt to such capital expenditures, sre reflected in the financial
statements of the Commission as revenue. Any gain or iass on the dispesition of assets is reflected
in the year of disposition. - ST S S S : S

inventory

- Inventory is stated at the lowsr of cost and net réallzable vaius. Cost being defined as purchase cost
per invaics, plus freight and related duties and taxes, determined ona first-in, first-out hasis... Net

realizabla valte is defined as the resale price less related seling costs, Prior year Invenfory fs

- comprised solaly of fuel inventory hefd for resale before tha sale of fus! operations.

_Coniributecf services

- The C_omf_ﬁission' recaives cantributed services in the form of the time commitment of the
comritissioners in the overseeing of aperations. - The fair value of such contributed services Is not.

determinabia and, tersfore, not recognized in the financial statements.

' impairment of long-lived assets

The ca‘rry%ng'-\;ra!ue of ioﬁg%i?;ed asgets inciuding property and equipment is periodicatly reviewed for

irnpaitmarit, The Comimisslon reviews for impaiment of long-ivad assefs to be held and used -
whenever events or changes In cirtumstances Indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may -
not be racoverable. | if the sum of the undiscounted expecied fulure cash fows expected to result

from the 154 and eventual disposition of an asset Is less than lts carrying amount, it is considered to

be impaired.  An impairmert loss is measured at the amount by which the carrying amount of the -
puset exceeds its valus, Whan guoted market prices. are not available, the commission uses the

‘expocted future cash flows discounted at a rate commensurate with the risks associated with the
_ recovery of the asset as an estimate of fairvalue. AR o : s

Income taxes- -

* The Commission is subsidiary of a municipal enterprise ard as such, is exempt from income taxas.

. (confﬁnués}
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NIAGARA DISTRICT AIRFORT COM M;ssiou
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
'YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

SUMMARY GF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuad)

Use of estimaies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting

standards requires management to maks estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amourit
of assets and labllifies, disclosure of contingent assets and Habilities at the date of the financial

statements and the reéparted amounts of revenuas and expensaes during the peried. Such estimates -

- dre periodically reviewed and any adjustments necessary are reported in earnings in the period i
- which they become known., Actuai resuits could differ from these estimates. ' :

Internally restricted for capital purposes ©

inteirhaiiy'restricted for cfapital_purposes'exists in compliance with motions passed by the 'alrpaf’c .

Commission to cover futute capital expenditures. The Commission defines it's restricted fund a3

income from operations piis procseds from the sale of assets, léss cash outlays for capital

_ purchases. :

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT | -
- 2012 2011

Cost Aceumulatad Met book - Net book

_ amortization -. - value value -
Land : - % 25437 % - % 25437 § - 25437
Land improvements - 7,341,059 745,171 . B,595788  6935,049
Bulidings - : ' 2,089,782 108,362 1,584,420 1,098 087
Eguipment - : 1,300,008 83,827 121147 1,272,854
Motor vehicles . : 262,020 94,068 - AT0.,862 221,375
Computer eduipment. : 11,025 : 11,025 - : 1,378
Other machinery and equipment - 1,343,689 102,880 1,240,989 1,279,229
Furniture and fixtures ' . 33885 . 6318 26,535 30,348
Linear assels . . . 1,085 456 . 39,883 1,645,603 1,068,503
Signs o ' . 1 ' 1 - .

3 13502622 3 1191403 $ 12311219 $ 12.634.261

. ADOPTION OF CANADIAN PUBLIC SECTOR ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOR NOT-FOR-
" PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS ST -

Effective January 1, 2012, the Commission adopted requirements of the Canadian fnstitute of

Charterad  Accountants (CICA) Handbaok - Aceounting, electing to adopt the new accounting '

framework: ‘Canadian public sector accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations. These are

the Comimission's first financial statements prepared in accordance with these accounting standards

and the transitional provisions of Section 2125, First-time ‘Adoption by Government Not-for-Profit
Organizations have been applied. Section 2126 requires retrospective application of the accounting
standards with certain: glective exemptions and limited retrospective exceptions. The accounting
policies set out in note 2, significant accounting policies, have been applied in ‘preparing the financial

 statements for the year énded Dacember 31, 2012, the comparative information presented in these

financial statsments for the: year ended Decerniber 31, 2011 and.in the preparation of an opening

statement of financial positian at Jan_uary_'l, 2011 (the Commission's date of transition). Also see |

: ~ Notes.

. DBRIDGMANG&DURKSEN - °
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NIAGARA DISTRICT AIRPORT COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

ADOPTION OF NEW AGCGUNT{NG STANDARDS

The Comrmission 1ssued financial statemnents for the year- anded December 31, 2011 using generatly
accepted accounting princ iples prescribed by CICA Handbook - Part V, Pre- changeaver Accounting
Standards. The adaoption of Canadian public sector accounting standards for govemment nat-for-
nrofit organizations had an impact on the previously reported opening balances of assets, liabilities
and net assets of the Commission and, accardingly, adjustments have been recorded .in the
campatative statement of financial position, the statements of revenues and expenditures, changes

in net assets and cash flows. Certain of the Commission’s disclesures included in these financial
statements refiect the new disclosure requirements of Canadian public sector accounting standards
for government not~fc>r~pmf t organizations. The effect af the restatement is showr below.

2011
Net Assets. - .
Increase in tangible capital assets . . $ 881,524
Increase in accumulated amortization {403,317)
increase In loss on asset disposals ) (12,162}
Subtotal - | o 566,105
Net assets as or:gmaliy Stated ' _ - 522,381
Net assets as restated | | $__1,088,456

Excess (Deﬁciency} of Revenue and Expenditure

Increase in capital grants ' % 203,307
Decreasa in capital iterns expansad : 328,231
Decrease in legal fees : . 5,445
increass in amomzatson expense _ (284,180}
' Subtotal : 320,793
(Deficiency) of revenue over expend:tures as ongma by
- slated _ {298,088}
(Deficiency) of revénu-é over expendilures as restated ' - 5 24,705 :
PENSION PLAN

The Camrmssmn makes annual coni;nbutlons to tha Ontano Mimicipal Empiuyees Retirement Fund

(OMERS) an behalf of the mernbers of its staff. The plan is a definad benafit plan which spegifies the

amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employess based on iength of service and

rates of pay. However, the Commission is only committed for the :current contributions refating 1o
smployees, and-thera is no other habmty for future pension contributions above these annual
ccntnbutmns : : _ .

Contributions to the paris fon plan for 2012 were $20, 414 (2011 - $16 099)

BR’ED(;MAN&DURKSEN_ SRR BN
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 NIAGARA DISTRICT AIRFORT COMMISSION
~ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

LONG TERM LIABILITIES | |
: SRR _ 2012 2011
Hangér foan bearéhg interest;at 3%1 per annum, repayable in
annual payments of $50,000 plus interest, - The loan matures ' : S
on August 31, 2015 and is secured by Hangar S o $ 150,000 $ 200,000
Ale Mohite tax arrears Izab;hty agreament rzcm znterest beanng " '
payable in annual tnstalimems of 312, OOD Final payment s . _ ' .
June 30 2015 : _ 48,000 - -
SRR 198,000 200000
Amounts payable within one year - L (82,000) (50,000) -

§ 138000 3 - 150,000
Brincipal repéyment terms are apprjax_imataiy:'

Cema o $ 52000

S 2014 SR 82,000

2018 : S 82,000

2016 R 12,000

$_..198,000

DEFERRED GAFITAL CONTRIBUTIONS -
. o o 2012 - 2011

Balance, beginning of year . . $ 1597362 8 .
Funds received during the year : L : 11,670,669

Charged to fund revenues during the yesr - {521 111) (o83, 3(}7)
R o - § 34068251 5 11567367

;Deferred capztat contr&butlcsns repr@sent contributions received for the purchase of capétai asseis
- The amount of the annual charge to revenues s aguivalent to the annuaé ammrt!zat%on axpense of the
related caplta’é assets

CGMPARATWE FlGURES

Some of ihe comparatwe f' gures have been redasstﬂed to conform o fhe current years presenta‘tien

%RE{)C}MAN & DURK%EN
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